Public Document Pack

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL
To: Councillor Milne, Convener; and Councillors Donnelly and Lawrence

Town House,
ABERDEEN 31 March 2015

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

The Members of the LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL are
requested to meet in Committee Room 2 - Town House on TUESDAY, 7 APRIL 2015 at
11.00 am.

JANE G. MACEACHRAN
HEAD OF LEGAL AND DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

BUSINESS

1 Procedure Notice (Pages 1 - 2)

COPIES OF THE RELEVANT PLANS / DRAWINGS ARE AVAILABLE FOR
INSPECTION IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING AND WILL BE DISPLAYED AT
THE MEETING

TO REVIEW THE DECISION OF THE APPOINTED OFFICER TO REFUSE THE
FOLLOWING APPLICATIONS

2 54 Salisbury Terrace - Change of Use from Class 5 (General Industrial) to Car
Repair (Class 5) and Care Hire (Sui Generis) - P141473

PLANNING ADVISER - MATTHEW EASTON

2.1 Delegated Report (Pages 3 - 14)

2.2 Planning Policies referred to in Documents submitted (Pages 15 - 60)




2.3 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by Applicant
(Pages 61 - 78)

24 Determination - Reasons for Decision

2.5 Consideration of conditions to be attached if Members are minded to
overturn the decision of the Case Officer

Website Address: www.aberdeencity.qgov.uk

Should you require any further information about this agenda, please contact Martyn
Orchard on 01224 523097 or email morchard@aberdeencity.gov.uk



Agenda ltem 1

LOCAL REVIEW BODY OF ABERDEEN CITY COUNCIL

PROCEDURE NOTE

GENERAL

1.

The Local Review Body of Aberdeen City Council (the LRB) must at all times
comply with (one) the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Schemes
of Delegation and Local Review Procedure) (Scotland) Regulations 2008 (the
regulations), and (two) Aberdeen City Council's Standing Orders.

In dealing with a request for the review of a decision made by an appointed
officer under the Scheme of Delegation adopted by the Council for the
determination of “local” planning applications, the LRB acknowledge that the
review process as set out in the regulations, shall be carried out in stages.

As the first stage and having considered the applicant’s stated preference (if
any) for the procedure to be followed, the LRB must decide how the case
under review is to be determined.

Where the LRB consider that the review documents (as defined within the
regulations) provide sufficient information to enable them to determine the
review, they may (as the next stage in the process) proceed to do so without
further procedure.

Should the LRB, however, consider that they are not in a position to determine
the review without further procedure, they must then decide which one of (or
combination of) the further procedures available to them in terms of the
regulations should be pursued. The further procedures available are:-

(@)  written submissions;

(b) the holding of one or more hearing sessions;

(c) an inspection of the site.

If the LRB do decide to seek further information or representations prior to the
determination of the review, they will require, in addition to deciding the
manner in which that further information/representations should be provided, to
be specific about the nature of the information/representations sought and by
whom it should be provided.

[n adjourning a meeting to such date and time as it may then or later decide,
the LRB shall take into account the procedures outlined within Part 4 of the
regulations, which will require to be fully observed.

DETERMINATION OF REVIEW

8.

Once in possession of all information and/or representations considered
necessary to the case before them, the LRB will proceed to determine the
review,

Page 1



9. The starting point for the determination of the review by the LRB will be Section
25 of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997, which provides
that:-

“where, in making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is
to be had to the Development Plan, the determination shall be made in
accordance with the Plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.”

10.  In coming fo a decision on the review before them, the LRB will require:-

(a) to consider the Development Plan position relating to the application
proposal and reach a view as to whether the proposal accords with the
Development Plan;

(b)  toidentify all other material considerations arising (if any) which may be
relevant to the proposal;

{c) to weigh the Development Plan position against the other material
considerations arising before deciding whether the Development Plan
should or should not prevait in the circumstances.

11. In determining the review, the LRB will:-
(a) uphold the appointed officers determination, with or without
amendments or additions to the reason for refusal; or
(b) overturn the appointed officers decision and approve the application
with or without appropriate conditions.

12.  The LRB will give clear reasons for its decision in recognition that these will
require to be intimated and publicised in full accordance with the regulations.

committees/local review body/procedure note

Page 2



Agenda ltem 2.1

Signed (authorised Officer(s)): 54 SALISBURY TERRACE, ABERDEEN

CHANGE OF USE FROM CLASS 5
(GENERAL INDUSTRIAL) TO CAR REPAIR
(CLASS 5) AND CAR HIRE (SUI GENERIS).

For: Washbay

Application Type : Detailed Planning
Permission

Application Ref. : P141473
Application Date  : 30/09/2014

Advert : None

Advertised on - N/A

Officer : Andrew Miller
Creation Date : 9 December 2014

Ward: Airyhall/Broomhill/Garthdee (I Yuill/A
Taylor/G Townson)
Community Council: Comments

RECOMMENDATION:

Refuse

DESCRIPTION

The application site forms a garage falling into Use Class 5 (General Industrial)
with the most recent use being a car valeters. The site covers an area of some
266 sq m, and contains two buildings in a L shape with a canopy to the side. The
surrounding area is residential, and is zoned as such in the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan 2012. The Great Western Road Conservation Area bounds
the site to the north west.

RELEVANT HISTORY

130793 — Demolition of garage/car valet business and erection of new house
granted Detailed Planning Permission 10 February 2014.

97/1394 — Alteration to form new wash bay granted Detailed Planning Permission
12 September 1997.

Page 3



94/1288 — Demolition of commercial garage and associated yard area and
erection of three terraced dwellinghouses refused Detailed Planning Permission
by the Planning committee 19 October 1994.

PROPOSAL

Detailed planning permission is sought for the change of use of the premises
from a Car Valeters/Class 5 (General Industrial) to a mix of Car Repair (Class 5)
and Car Hire (Sui Generis).

Supporting Documents

All drawings and the supporting documents listed below relating to this
application can be viewed on the Council’s website at -
http://planning.aberdeencity.gov.uk/PlanningDetail.asp?ref.=141473

On accepting the disclaimer enter the application reference quoted on the first
page of this report.

CONSULTATIONS

Roads Projects Team — Object on the lack of parking provision and the
unsuitable layout of parking provided.

Environmental Health — No observations.

Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure (Flooding) — No observations.

Ashley and Broomhill Community Council — Object to application on basis
that:

1. Concern that the applicant proposes to do car repair and car hire from the
premises. The applicant also currently carries out body repairs at their
existing premises.

2. The surrounding area is residential.

3. Limited parking on site for hire cars and those of customers, staff. It is
inevitable there will be overspill on the street.

4. Development will add to congestion on roads in the area.

5. Salisbury Terrace is unsuitable for trucks that would be delivering cars for

repair and spare parts. Traffic would have to stop for any deliveries to the

site.

Would cause problems for refuse vehicles in the street.

Car repairs will result in noise from motor vehicles and machinery,

impacting on nearby residents.

8. Paint spraying may generate fumes and airborne particulates that would
affect nearby residents.

9. All vehicles would have to cross a narrow pavement to enter the premises.
Vehicles negotiating the entrance would cause obstruction and hazard,

N

Page 4



representing a danger to all pedestrians, including children going to
school.

10.Waste disposal may also be problematic involving chemicals, solvents,
paint and car parts.

REPRESENTATIONS

One letter of representation was received though this was out of time, though the
matters raised in the objection were also raised by Ashley and Broomhill
Community Council (Impact on traffic and pollution from the proposed works) and
as such can be taken into account.

PLANNING POLICY

Aberdeen Local Development Plan (ALDP)

H1 — Residential Areas

Within existing residential areas, proposals for non-residential uses will be
refused unless:

1. they are considered complementary to residential use; or
2. it can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or any
nuisance to, the enjoyment of existing residential amenity.

T2 — Managing the Transport Impact of Development

Maximum car parking standards are set out in Transport and Accessibility
Supplementary Guidance, detailing the standards that development should
provide.

Supplementary Guidance

The Council’'s Supplementary Guidance — Transport and Accessibility (SG) is a
material consideration in this instance.

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

H1 — Residential Areas

Within existing residential areas, proposals for non-residential uses will be
refused unless:

1. they are considered complementary to residential use; or

Page 5



2. it can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or any
nuisance to, the enjoyment of existing residential amenity.

T2 — Managing the Transport Impact of Development’

Commensurate with the scale and anticipated impact, new developments must
demonstrate that sufficient measures have been taken to minimise traffic
generated and to maximise opportunities for sustainable and active travel.

Transport Assessments and Travel Plans will be required for developments
which exceed the thresholds set out in Supplementary Guidance.

The development of new communities should be accompanied by an increase in
local services and employment opportunities that reduce the need to travel and
include integrated walking, cycling and public transport infrastructure to ensure
that, where travel is necessary, sustainable modes are prioritised. Where
sufficient sustainable transport links to and from new developments are not in
place, developers will be required to provide such facilities or a suitable
contribution towards implementation.

Further information is contained in the relevant Supplementary Guidance which
should be read in conjunction with this policy.

Other Relevant Material Considerations

None.

EVALUATION

Sections 25 and 37(2) of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act 1997 (as
amended) require that where, in making any determination under the planning
acts, regard is to be had to the provisions of the development plan and that
determination shall be made in accordance with the plan, so far as material to the
application, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The main issues in this instance relate to the principle of the change of use and
the capacity of the site to accommodate the proposed change of use.

Principle

The existing use of the building falls within Use Class 5 (General Industrial), with
the recent use for Car Valeting falling within this class, along with the use prior to
this for Car Repairs. The surrounding area is zoned for residential uses within the
ALDP and point 2 of the Community Council response is noted. Associated policy
H1 of the ALDP creates a presumption in favour of residential uses, though

Page 6



where non-residential uses are proposed, these should be complementary to the
residential use or not conflict/cause nuisance to the enjoyment of existing
residential amenity.

In this instance, there is an established use as a result of the existing activity
within the site (garage/car valeting). The proposals seek to operate the business
for car repairs, which if it were carried out in its own right would not require a
change of use consent as it falls within the use class of the existing activity.
However, the applicant is also seeking to operate car hire from the premises,
which falls within its own use class (Sui Generis), hence the need for this
application.

The introduction of car hire is the main consideration in this instance, and its
capacity to be accommodated within the site alongside Use Class 5. Car hire by
its own right would have a number of vehicle movements associated with it, and
when compared to car repair would have less of an impact on the amenity of
neighbouring properties (noise, fumes etc.). However it would also result in noise
and activity, although this would be on a lesser scale.

Capacity of Site

Policy T2 of the ALDP requires all new development to demonstrate that
sufficient measures have been taken to minimise traffic, whilst also requiring
development to accord with car parking standards. Parking standards are defined
within the SG.

The applicant’s car hire business would involve the leasing of 10 cars, though the
supporting statement identifies that vehicles would be out for hire at the majority
of the time. In determining the application, a “worst case” scenario should be
applied — i.e. all 10 cars would be on site. Parking also needs to be provided in
for the car repair element of the proposed use in line with standards. The
concerns raised by the Community Council (points 3, 4, 5 and 9 above) are
noted.

In this instance, the applicant has indicated 10 parking spaces for the car hire
element of the proposals, though has not provided any other parking (for staff,
car repair etc.). The parking provision identified for the 10 hire cars is not
acceptable, providing no manoeuvrability within the site. The shortfall of parking
could result in cars parking on the surrounding streets. The Council’'s Roads
Projects team have identified that the two proposed uses would be
unmanageable without the surrounding streets having to accommodate the
overspill of parking. The area is currently at capacity with regard to on street
parking and volumes of traffic, and as such it is considered the proposed
development could add to the problem, having an adverse impact on road safety
and the general amenity of the surrounding area.

Page 7



Taking account of the above considerations, it is considered that the parking
provision (layout and shortfall) are unacceptable for the proposed mixed use. The
Council’'s Roads Projects team have concerns about the impact of the proposed
use on the surrounding road network, and as such have recommended the
application be refused on this basis. The intensified use would result in an
adverse impact on the amenity of the neighbouring residential area, contrary to
the requirements of policy H1 — Residential Areas of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan 2012.

Matters Raised By Community Council/Objection

In respect of the matters raised by the Community Council in their objection, the
applicant does not operate a body shop/car spraying from their current premises,
therefore the matter raised in point 1 is irrelevant. Notwithstanding this, the
applicant could carry out body repair work within the current use of the building
without the need for consent.

Relating to concerns about pollution (noise, fumes etc.) as raised in points 6, 7, 8
and 10 of the representations section, the use of the building for car repairs is
currently established under the consented use. Whilst the planning process can
to some degree control these matters, other legislation exists controlling these
matters where planning cannot (e.g. environmental health).

Proposed Aberdeen Local Development Plan

The Proposed ALDP was approved at the meeting of the Communities, Housing
and Infrastructure Committee of 28 October 2014. It constitutes the Council’s
settled view as to what should be the content of the final adopted ALDP and is
now a material consideration in the determination of planning applications, along
with the adopted ALDP. The exact weight to be given to matters contained in the
Proposed ALDP (including individual policies) in relation to specific applications
will depend on whether:
- these matters have been subject to public consultation through the Main
Issues Report; and
- the level of objection raised in relation these matters as part of the Main
Issues Report; and
- the relevance of these matters to the application under consideration
The foregoing can only be assessed on a case by case basis. In relation to this
particular application the relevant policies and designations within the Proposed
ALDP are not dissimilar to those within the adopted ALDP.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse

Page 8



REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

The proposed change of use to a mixed use of car repair and car hire fails to
provide sufficient useable parking on site, contrary to the requirements of policy
T2 — Managing the Transport Impact of Development of the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan 2012 and the parking standards contained within the Council’s
Supplementary Guidance — Transport and Accessibility. The proposals would
also harm the amenity of the surrounding residential area, contrary to the
requirements of policy H1 — Residential Areas. The change of use would also be
contrary to the requirements of policies T2 — Managing the Impact of
Development and H1 — Residential Areas of the Proposed Aberdeen Local
Development Plan. There are no material considerations that would alter this
assessment.

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Planning Application Reference: 141473

Proposal Description: Change of use from Class 5 (General Industrial) to Car Repair {Class 5) and Car
Hire (Sui Ganeris).

Applicant: Washbay , 54 Salishury Terrace, Aberdeen , Aberdeen City , AB10 60QH
Comments by Aﬁhiey and Broomhitll Community Council.
Dear Sirs

The comments on and ijECtiOnS by Ashley and Broomhill Community Council to this plannlng
application are as follows:

This property was marketed with planning permission to build a house. After standing empty for a
considerable number of months, the former “Wash Bay’ premises the site was sold for nen-
residential use. There is concern that the new owners of these premises intend to offer a car repair
and car hire business. Their current premises also do body shop and paint spraying. For a very long
time (20 years +?) it has operated as a Car Valet Service. While in the past {before the car valet) this
address did operate as a car repair workshop, Ashley and Broomhill Community Council would
suggest that such a change of use should not be permitied .

Reasons include:

i. Salisbury Terrace is in a residential area.

2. There is very limited space at the site for customer parking, staf‘f parking and the parking of
cars to be hired / being returned from hire. 1t is inevitable that customer, hire and staff cars
will be parked on the street, as will other vehicles appropriate to that business. ‘

3. Recent traffic surveys'show the area to be heavily congested with residents parked cars at all
times, Extra traffic/demand for parking will add to the strain.

4. The same surveys show Salisbury Terrace to be unsuitable for trucks, such as those who
would be transporting damaged cars, or delivering spare parts. The access to the premises is
very restricted. ,

5. [ltis likely that, traffic would have to stop while deliveries are made. Salisbury Terrace is a
convenient route for drivers crossing the city at all times, as it provides an alternative to
North Anderson Drive. This would cause problems to commuters across the city. It couid also
cause problems for ACC refuse collection vehicles. -

Page 11



6. The nature of a repair and body shop business will generate noise from motor vehicles and
machinery required that nearby residents will have to suffer.

7. Paint Spraying may generate fumes that nearby residents could be affected by Body shop
activities may also generate airborne particulates.

8. It is possible that paints and chemicals would be stored at the premrses, and this too is a
cause for concern to residents

9. All vehicles would have to cross a harrow pavement to enter the premises. Vehicles
negotiating the entrance would cause obstruction and hazard. This represénts a danger to all
pedestrians, not just primary school children going to Broombhill, or older pupils walking to

-~ nearbyschools.

10. Waste disposal may also be problematical, and may involve chem:cals, solvents, paint, and
car parts.

It should be noted that the notification of this planning application was not received in time for
consideration at the meeting of the community council on 2™October 2014. The proposed
development of this site was discussed at the next community council meeting held on 6
November 2014. This document has been prepared and submitted following the discussion

_ concerning the development of this site at the community council meeting held on 6™ November

2014.
The view of the community council is that this application should be rejected.

Richard Butler

é{—f\'Ném»«Lw\ YT .

"Secretary

Ashley and Broomhill Community Council

e-mail:

Page 12



L T Sasbuny Ramce

W—QQ.A/\
Pdio 6 &l
6lilie

Raa\w—-—g Ryt

Fao A . miller

Deav— W~ MUWlr
e applicakun @r w0 SC Salahuy Tomee,

T ohd  wok reciene Mo tfuate o Luo,
un the  post , nov  wstre (hue auy posun
n A S0k

s & closs  neighbows 5 p@’ ue tL
Iougunr possdete (eums. farky and
tafpe Llow 0 alrtade o weghit. e
ot na @ & canly Corgodma
by Gk @ luger vehles - lo patice

(kp  Moscnors (Mww{\cw By 3P ) toes
R ee & Askuens i G B

Ml%lwsld/«/)&—ma%ﬁ/&ms/
cinss | bt cors Chetlog op B Sneot

Rease 18t Mo R




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda ltem 2.2

Policy H1 - Residential Areas

Within existing residential areas (H1 on the Proposals Map) and within new
residential developments, proposals for new residential development and
householder development will be approved in principle if it:

1. does not constitute over development;

2. does not have an unacceptable impact on the character or amenity of the
surrounding area;

3. does not result in the loss of valuable and valued areas of open space. Open
space is defined in the Aberdeen Open Space Audit 2010;

4. complies with Supplementary Guidance on Curtilage Splits; and

5. complies with Supplementary Guidance on House Extensions.

Within existing residential areas, proposals for non-residential uses will be refused
unless:

1. they are considered complementary to residential use; or
2. it can be demonstrated that the use would cause no conflict with, or any nuisance
to, the enjoyment of existing residential amenity.

Policy T2 - Managing the Transport Impact of Development

New developments will need to demonstrate that sufficient measures have been
taken to minimise the traffic generated.

Transport Assessments and Travel Plans will be required for developments which
exceed the thresholds set out in the Transport and Accessibility Supplementary
Guidance. Planning conditions and/or legal agreements may be imposed to bind the
targets set out in the Travel Plan and set the arrangements for monitoring,
enforcement and review.

Maximum car parking standards are set out in Supplementary Guidance on

Transport and Accessibility and detail the standards that different types of
development should provide.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



Bl O o

aberdeen local development plan

Supplementary Guidance
Topic: Transport and Accessibility

March 2012

Page 17



c

ONTENTS

= © ® N o g bk~ wdhd =

INTRODUCTION

STANDARDS FOR ACCESSIBILITY AND PUBLIC TRANSPORT SERVICES
ACCESS AND PERMEABILITY

GUIDELINES & SPECIFICATIONS GUIDANCE

TRANSPORT ASSESSMENTS

TRAVEL PLANS

PARKING

PARKING IN CONSERVATION AREAS

. DRIVEWAYS GUIDE

0. AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINES (“CASH MACHINES”)

Page 18

o o0 b~ W

15
29
37
41



1. INTRODUCTION

Good transport connections are essential to the economic prosperity of Aberdeen
and the quality of life of people living and working in the City. With an emphasis on
ensuring that transport provision is considered from the very outset of a planning
application, the Council is committed to developments that encourage sustainable
travel.

This Supplementary Guidance on Transport and Accessibility aims to assist
developers in the preparation of planning applications. This document examines a
number of transport and accessibility issues that may have to be considered as part
of a planning application and should be read in conjunction with the Aberdeen Local
Development Plan and the Local Transport Strategy.

Page 19



2. STANDARDS FOR ACCESSIBILITY AND PUBLIC TRANSPORT SERVICES

The ability to access key services and facilities directly affects quality of life and is a
major contributor to social inclusion. New and existing communities should be able
to access services, facilities and jobs by walking, cycling and public transport.

Developments should be linked by the most direct, attractive, safe and secure
pedestrian links possible to potential trip sources within 800 metres of the
development.

Public transport should be available within 400 metres of the origins and destinations
of trips within the development. Public transport provision should be at a frequency,
times and to places that;

e Are at intervals of no more than 15 minutes, and ideally 10-12 minutes;

e Meet the needs of those without access to a car who would wish to access the
development; and

¢ Provide an effective alternative for those that do have access to a car.

Developers will be required to provide for the appropriate level of service identified
through a transport assessment, if this level will not be provided commercially by a
bus operator.

In all cases developers should engage with the Council and relevant partners (such
as Nestrans and public transport operators) at an early stage in the masterplan
and/or planning application process to discuss the arrangements and requirements
for providing new public transport services.

Accessibility Planning software, such as Accession, may be used as a tool to assess
potential development locations and then guide decisions on development proposals.
Accessibility planning involves measuring journey times to services and facilities and
identifying the most suitable locations for new development or particular services and
facilities. By measuring accessibility to services/facilities by public transport this
process can also be used to improve the quality and availability of public transport to
existing and future users or customers. In doing so, Accessibility Planning provides
opportunities to improve social inclusion.

Page 20



3. ACCESS AND PERMEABILITY

The ability to access, move around and through the built and natural environment by
walking and cycling is a major contributor to quality of life and, in particular, an
individual’s ability to freely access the services and facilities they need without using
a vehicle. New development will be required to protect and enhance existing access
rights including core paths, rights of way and paths within the wider network.

The Land Reform (Scotland) Act 2003 introduced the right of responsible non-
motorised access to most land and inland water in Scotland. The Land Reform Act
also introduced statutory duties on Aberdeen City Council requiring it to protect
access rights, including core paths and other paths within the wider paths network. In
addition, the Council has a duty under the Countryside (Scotland) Act 1967 to uphold
access along any public right of way.

In planning the layout of new development, the Core Paths Plan (2009) and Open
Space Strategy (2011) should be taken into account, including routes referred to as
‘aspirational’ in the Core Paths Plan. New development must be permeable to
walkers and cyclists and should ensure that new routes are planned in accordance
with the 5 C’s — connected, convenient, comfortable, convivial and conspicuous — as
referred to in the Aberdeen Local Transport Strategy 2008 - 2012.

The Aberdeen Outdoor Access Forum brings together key stakeholders involved with
access to the outdoors. The Forum has an input to access provision relating to new
development, and will assist the Council in the resolution of any outdoor access
disputes where there are conflicts between the provision of new or improved access
routes and neighbouring land uses.

Further guidance on the following access issues can be found in the documents
listed below.

Standards for path Lowland Path Construction: A Guide to Good Practice
construction Paths for All (2001)

Standards for signage Signage Guidance for Outdoor Access: A Guide to
design Good Practice

Paths for All (2009)

Directional Signage Guidance for Paths
Aberdeen City Council (2011)

Page 21



4, GUIDELINES & SPECIFICATIONS GUIDANCE

The Council is undertaking a review of its 1998 publication “Guidelines and
Specification for Roads within Residential and Industrial Developments” which sets
out the technical requirements for designing new roads, parking facilities, and
walking and cycling infrastructure. The review takes account of the Scottish
Government’s Policy Statement Designing Streets (2010). The Council intends to
publish a fully revised version of the technical guidelines in due course and officers
are progressing this detailed work. In the meantime, the Local Development Plan
has taken account of Designing Streets by including a Roads Descriptor’ Map which
categorises the road network according to the principles of Designing Streets (see
Figure 1 and 2 below). This will form part of the full review document but is being
published as part of this Supplementary Guidance in order to guide the planning and
delivery of different types of roads that the Council will expect to be provided to
support new developments.

For the avoidance of any doubt, we would recommend that developers speak to the
Roads Design Team at the earliest possible stage in the planning application process
to determine an appropriate design and layout for development.

Page 22



Figure 1 — Roads Descriptor Map

|Designing Streets and Roads Descriptors, = Saend =

; T © ABERDEEN
= mm Western Peripheral Route - Ling 1 e w =%y i2h e
mm |fajor Urban Roads '. g Reuthi ¢ £ :
. mmsss Urban Roads v’ : b e . ! 2
‘m Major Urban Streets : = - b g 5 e e
me ain Strests B i 5 1 ' )
Pedestrianised or Semi . = A f i
s Industrial
3 : """ uam
' .
L Vi
[
1
N
]
S N
e = .
% -‘
.

@ = -
,-. =] .~ -
b : b Byt

i = - o¥ o
T et " “‘ -

“.

¢ .
“-
_ "

g .t i

.. - X, 4

a® i

" "aEEn" ]
f

(¢} Crown Capyright Al rights reserved. Aberdeen City Councl - Licence no. 100023401 (2011)  _ VS " o e

Page 23



¢ obed

Figure 2 — Roads Descriptor Matrix

MOVEMENT FUNCTION

HIGH

MAIJOR MATJTOR
TURBAN URBAN
ROADS STREETS
— * ‘M Kph +
B e {an par DMRB)
INDUSTRIAL TURBAN MAIN - HIGH 80 Kph
ROADS ROADS STREETS
40 Kph
20 Koh
RESIDENTIAL
STREETS
INDUSTRIAL
STREETS SQUARE /
PEDESTRIAN
l AREA
LOwW MEDIUM HIGH

PLACE FUNCTION




5. TRANSPORT ASSESSMENTS

The majority of new development will have an impact on the transport network and
these impacts must be identified and dealt with as early as possible in the planning
process. Transport Assessments (TA) can help to identify and tackle these issues at
the planning application stage.

The Infrastructure and Developer Contributions Manual Supplementary Guidance
document identifies transport infrastructure required to support sites identified in the
Local Development Plan. In addition, developers will be required to undertake a
Transport Assessment to determine whether any further infrastructure or service
improvements are required in order to support the development proposed.

The Scottish Government has published guidance on Transport Assessments
(Transport Assessment and Implementation: A Guide, 2005) and developers should
refer to this for more detailed information.

Transport Assessments will vary in size and complexity depending on the nature,
size and possible effects of the development.

A Transport Assessment will be required for developments which exceed the
following thresholds,:

Food retail >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Non-food retail >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Cinemas and conference facilities >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area
Leisure facilities >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Business >2,500m2 Gross Floor Area

Industry >5,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Distribution and warehousing >10,000m2 Gross Floor Area
Hospitals >2,500m2 Gross Floor Area

Higher and further education >2,500m2 Gross Floor Area
Stadia >1,500 seats

Housing >100 dwellings.

A Transport Assessment should provide a comprehensive and consistent review of
all the potential transport impacts relating to a proposed development or
redevelopment and its immediate vicinity. The TA should consider travel-related
issues such as safety, trip generation, access junction design and new infrastructure
required (such as new bus services or cycle lanes) before, during and following
construction. Adverse traffic and accessibility issues should be addressed and, if
appropriate, suitable mitigation measures identified.

The assessment should look at the accessibility of the site by different modes of
travel. The objective should be to maximise sustainable travel by walking, cycling and
public transport and only then to consider the impact of the residual car traffic.
Developers will be expected to take a realistic approach to their assessment of how
much travel will be capable of being attracted to sustainable modes and they should
bear in mind the Council’s traffic targets as set out in the Local Transport Strategy
(2008) and detailed in the Local Transport Strategy Monitoring Paper (2009).

Page 25



There are two ways to ensure that sustainable travel will be maximised. First, through
careful attention to the design and layout of the development itself and giving priority
to those on foot, cycling or using public transport ahead of car user requirements;
secondly through measures to improve infrastructure and services to encourage
sustainable travel within the catchment area of the development.

As a minimum, the Transport Assessment should include:

1. Details of the development:

The proposed land use;

Scale of the development, such as number of residential units or Gross Floor
Area (GFA) and phasing of development;

Plans and drawings showing the proposed site layout, particularly the
proposed pedestrian, cycle and vehicular access points into the site;
Servicing arrangements and emergency vehicle access; and

Parking provision (including disabled, cycle and motorcycle parking).

2. Existing transport conditions:

3.

Walking and cycling routes and facilities;

Existing public transport services and infrastructure;
Operation of the local road network;

Recent traffic surveys; and

Accident history on the local road network.

Trip generation and distribution:

Calculation of the likely number of trips to and from the development by each
transport mode throughout the day; and
Determination of which routes will be used to access the site.

4. Public transport, walking and cycling assessments:

Assessment of whether the current public transport services and walking and
cycling infrastructure have sufficient capacity to accommodate the additional
trips created by the development;

An assessment of the level of accessibility to services and facilities by public
transport, walking and cycling, where possible using the Accession software
tool; and

If levels of accessibility are not sufficient, details of new facilities/services to
be provided as part of the development proposals, such as public transport
improvements and improved footpath and cycle path linkages.

5. Proposals (in the form of a Travel Plan) to reduce the number of trips to the
development:

Measures to reduce the need to travel (e.g. home working);

Measures to encourage the use of more sustainable travel options rather
than single occupier car journeys (e.g. walking, cycling, public transport, car
sharing); and

A proposed parking strategy.

6. Traffic Impact Assessments:

Assessment of whether the road network has sufficient capacity to
accommodate the residual vehicular trips created by the development

10

Page 26



The transport impacts of site construction, including the requirements of
abnormal loads in the construction, use and decommissioning of the present
development;

The transport impacts of freight or service operations;

If the site of the proposed development has a current use or an extant
planning permission with trip patterns/volumes, the net level of change that
might arise out of the new proposals should be set out; and

An identification of the mitigation measures that will be required to address
those traffic impacts that are likely to cause concern.

11

Page 27



6. TRAVEL PLANS

A Travel Plan is a generic title for a package of measures aimed at promoting more
sustainable travel choices to and from a development, with an emphasis on
reducing reliance on the private car, thereby lessening the impact on the
surrounding road network. A Travel Plan may also be required to address a
particular traffic or parking problem likely to come about as a result of development
and to reduce harmful emissions from vehicles.

Travel Plans can also reduce the cost of business travel, promote healthy living
among employees and residents and widen the potential labour pool to include
those that do not have access to a car. Travel Plans can be financially beneficial for
employers to implement, by reducing the number of car parking spaces required.

A Travel Plan will be required for developments which exceeds the following
thresholds:

Food retail >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Non-food retail >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Cinemas and conference facilities >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area
Leisure facilities >1,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Business >2,500m2 Gross Floor Area

Industry >5,000m2 Gross Floor Area

Distribution and warehousing >10,000m2 Gross Floor Area
Hospitals >2,500m2 Gross Floor Area

Higher and further education >2,500m2 Gross Floor Area
Stadia >1,500 seats

Housing >100 dwellings.

All schools.

Developments which fall below these thresholds are also encouraged to prepare
Travel Plans in support of applications for development.

Travel Plans should be site-specific and measures and objectives should reflect the
individual characteristics of a site as well as the trips likely to be generated by that
development. They should contain a range of measures to ensure that the site is
accessible by a variety of modes of transport, and that private car use to and from
the site is discouraged via a combination of incentives and disincentives.
Workplace Travel Plans can address commuter journeys to work, customer access,
business travel and fleet management and they can encompass the movement of
freight as well as people.

There may be opportunities to create informal or formal networks of organisations
and businesses within defined areas known as Transport Management
Organisations (TMOs). TMOs provide a forum for identifying and implementing
measures that will improve travel conditions for companies, their employees, and
the local community. Aberdeen City Council will work with Nestrans and the private
sector to support and encourage the development of further TMOs across
Aberdeen.

12

Page 28



What should the Travel Plan contain?

A number of conditions have been identified that must be in place in order for a
Travel Plan to be successful:

The appointment of a dedicated Travel Plan Co-ordinator to oversee

implementation of the Plan;

and
[ ]

Engagement with staff and residents to identify what would encourage them
to change their travel behaviour;

The Plan should be based on the findings of a recent staff or residents travel
survey and regular follow-up surveys should be undertaken to assess the
Plan’s progress and ensure it remains current;

The plan should include a comprehensive package of measures, including
incentives and disincentives to bring about change;

The plan should be site-specific, tailored to suit the individual development;
The plan should set clear objectives and targets, with monitoring procedures
identified;

A funding stream for new infrastructure, initiatives, promotion and marketing;

Senior management support and approval for the Plan.

Typical workplace travel plan measures include:

Ensuring there are safe walking and cycling routes to the development;
Providing safe cycle parking facilities near the entrance to the workplace;
Providing showers and changing facilities for cyclists and pedestrians;
Providing a dedicated bus for employees or entering into negotiations with
bus companies to extend an existing bus service to serve the development ;
Providing tele- and video-conferencing facilities to reduce the need for
business travel;

Providing a pool car or car club vehicle for employees who need the use of a
car during the working day;

Negotiating discounted public transport fares for employees;

Car Park management such as deliberately limiting staff parking or charging
staff for car parking;

Establishing a car share scheme for employees and implementing priority
parking spaces for car sharers;

Introducing flexible working arrangements, such as home working and
flexitime working;

Introducing the HMRC'’s Salary Sacrifice Schemes for buses, bicycles and
home computers;

Raising awareness of the health, environmental and cost benefits of walking,
cycling and using public transport;

Raising awareness of public transport serving the site and making public
transport maps, timetables and leaflets available to staff and visitors.

Residential Travel Plans should outline measures aimed at influencing the travel
behaviour of new home owners to, from and within the development. These could
include:

Ensuring the development is well served by safe and pleasant walking and
cycling routes;

Page 29

13



e Entering into negotiations with bus operators to ensure that the development
can be served by public transport if it is not at present;

e Distributing a welcome pack to new residents with maps showing local
walking and cycling routes and local public transport maps, leaflets and
timetables ;

e Providing a car club vehicle(s) for residents to use;

e Establishing a residents’ car share scheme;

e Providing residents with 1 months’ free public transport tickets or a voucher
for discounted walking or cycling goods.

Leisure Travel Plans may also be required for developments likely to generate a
large volume of visitor journeys. Measures could include innovative marketing
campaigns and initiatives for encouraging sustainable travel, such as limiting, or
charging for, car parking, and ensuring the development is well served by walking,
cycling and public transport links.

A free online Travel Plan Builder is available (www.aberdeencitytravelplans.co.uk)
and officers in the Transportation Team are available to assist businesses and
developers in the preparation of a Travel Plan.

Monitoring and Evaluation

Travel Plans should identify effective monitoring techniques and these will be agreed
with the Council. The Council will request updates from developers every two years
on the implementation of the Travel Plan. Legal Agreements may be required or
planning conditions may be placed on planning applications to bind the targets set
out in the Travel Plan and set the arrangements for monitoring, enforcement and
review. More detailed guidance on what is expected as part of a Travel Plan will be
available in Travel Plans: A Guide for Developers which is being prepared and will be
published in 2012.

14

Page 30



7. PARKING

Parking policy is an essential component of the City Council’'s Local Transport
Strategy. Parking price and availability can have a significant influence on the way
that people choose to travel.

Adequate parking can enhance the attractiveness of an area for development and
sufficient spaces are needed to prevent over-spill parking into surrounding areas
especially if this will have a detrimental impact. On the other hand, the over-
provision of parking spaces can involve large tracts of land and lead to increased
land prices, reduce building densities and increase distances people must walk
between adjacent land uses. Over-provision of parking can also reduce travel by
alternative forms of transport.

Parking standards must therefore reflect a balance of conflicting objectives. The
standards in this document have been informed by the evidence of existing parking
demands and take account of the potential requirement for parking spaces in the
future given other policy measures to encourage the use of alternatives to cars. They
also take account of the Scottish Government’s Scottish Planning Policy guidelines
on parking standards.

The level of parking standards also relates to the location of the development. To
encourage the use of alternatives to the car where accessibility is high by non-car
modes, the maximum parking standards are lower. Three separate zones have
been identified by the Council for the application of varying parking standards and
these are described below and are shown in the map on Figure 3, page 18:

e Zone 1 is highly accessible by public transport and the density of population
relative to the mixture of land uses (retailing, employment etc) allows for a
large proportion of pedestrian and cycle journeys. On-street parking, public
off-street parking and park and ride opportunities are also available. These
factors allow for the lowest maximum levels of parking associated with new
developments.

e Zone 2 is relatively accessible by public transport and pay and display parking
is available in most parts of the area for short stay use.

e Zone 3 provides the third and least restrictive maximum standards as the area
is less accessible by public transport and the distance from main residential
areas may preclude walking and cycling on a significant scale.

Whilst the Local Transport Strategy seeks to reduce the amount of unnecessary car
use and dependency, it maintains the right of individuals to own and keep cars at a
residence. In view of this, the parking standards for housing developments should be
considered as guidelines. Where development proposals include the provision of off-
street parking, the entitlement to on-street parking permits will be restricted. Within
all zones where development proposals include parking provision that is less than the
guidelines for that Zone, developers will be expected to provide suitable alternatives
such as bus permits and membership to car clubs.

Different land use components in a mixed development should aim to share car
parking provision when the demand for the different land uses is at different times of
the day or week. For example, parking provision at a school in the daytime could be

15

Page 31



used for community and leisure facilities at evenings and weekends. Equally, office
car parking spaces could be used by neighbouring residents and visitors during
evenings and weekends when the business premises are unoccupied.

LOW AND NO CAR HOUSING

Aberdeen City Council will support and encourage low or no car housing, recognising
the contribution this can have towards sustainable development, where there is
evidence that car ownership and use will be low enough to justify proposals, and
where public transport and other travel options are sufficient to allow residents to rely
wholly on them.

It is vital that such development is located in an area of good existing public
transport, cycle and pedestrian links, thus allowing a design that facilitates as many
trips as possible to and from the development being made by modes other than the
private car.

Such development is likely to be more successful in city centre locations, where there
is already a high demand for car parking and good public transport links.

The Council will consider the following issues in determining proposals for low or no
car housing:
e The development is mixed use and there are employment opportunities within
walking and cycling distance of residential units;
e The development is linked to the main road network by well lit, safe and
pleasant footways or paths for pedestrians;
e The development is within 400m of the local cycle network and there is
adequate bicycle parking available; and
e There are at least 2 buses in each peak time quarter hour period serving, or
stopping close by to, the development.

Where development proposals are specifically put forward as low or no car housing,
the entitlement to on-street parking permits will be restricted.

The developer may also wish to establish a car club for the development, thus
reducing the need for residents to own a private car in the first place. There will
always be a requirement for a minimum amount of disabled parking within the site.

CAR CLUBS

An alternative way for a developer to demonstrate a commitment to minimising car
use is to enter into an agreement relating to a car club. Aberdeen City Council
support, and will promote, the implementation and expansion of car clubs in
Aberdeen City, especially in developments where there is significant potential to
reduce the number of car trips.

A car club is a scheme whereby a vehicle or vehicles are shared by a particular
community, with members typically paying an annual membership fee which then
provides them with access to a car on a ‘pay as you go’ basis (with the individual
usually paying for use per mile or per hour). Such a system allows members of the

16

Page 32



club to enjoy all the advantages and conveniences of car travel without them having
to own a car themselves.

Car club vehicles can act as pool vehicles for workplaces and can remove the need
for householders in a residential development to own a car. Research shows that
each car club vehicle typically replaces 6 private cars as club members refrain from
buying or maintaining a second car or even choose not to own a car at all.

Car clubs provide a means to reduce the number of parking spaces required for new
developments and can be used to retrofit existing developments, allowing them to
adopt more of a ‘Home Zone’ style approach. By reducing or eliminating the need for
onsite parking many new developments are made possible and their traffic impact
minimised.

Developers may choose to set up a car club solely for their development or to pay for
membership of an existing car club for all residents and/or employees of the
development. For a residential development to have a self-contained car club,
guidance suggests that there should be at least 200 units. Developments which are
smaller, or which have a mix of uses, can still include car clubs, although these may
need to be open to other subscribers in the immediate local area. Shared residential
and business membership could be one approach, as use of the vehicles for
business journeys is likely to be more in demand during working hours on weekdays
and domestic usage is likely to be more pronounced in evenings and weekends.

In entering into a legal agreement to set up and/or promote a car club, the developer
should ensure that the club is up and running from the very beginning of the
occupation of the development. It should be offered to prospective members on
favourable terms. A common requirement is free initial membership for three years.
The developer should expect to contribute to the costs of setting up and promoting
the club, as well as any traffic orders and works that might be necessary. The
developer should guarantee the car club for a period of 10 years.

PARKING STANDARDS

This section addresses the following:

. Non-residential parking (maximum standards)

. Residential parking (guidelines)

. Disabled Badge Holders’ Parking (requirements)
. Delivery space (guidelines)

Car Parking Standards - Introduction
Figure 3 below shows the areas covered by each of the 3 parking standard zones.

Please note the boundaries shown are indicative and subject to change through any
updates to the Local Transport Strategy.

17

Page 33



Figure 3 — Zones for Parking Standards

m::.".;ﬂ.,:’m“ oo ot o oty : Aberdeen Parking Standards Zones
© Crown Copyight
: i Wnliriges Crown cooynig [ zone 1 I:l'Zonez -‘Zone3

and may lead ion o P
Aberdeen City Council 100023401 2004

600 800 1Km

500 Metres

Page 34

18



For a change of use, developers should, in the first instance, take account of the
standards shown in the following tables. This may mean increasing the number of
spaces or possibly taking some away. Times of use of the existing and proposed
land use(s) may be relevant to the need to provide extra parking. For instance a
proposal for residential development in what is currently an office use may, on first
consideration, require extra spaces. However, as residential parking demand tends
to be mainly in an evening, it may be that the extra spaces could be accommodated
elsewhere without road safety, amenity or other issues being raised.

If a site is redeveloped in its entirety with existing buildings demolished and the site
cleared then developers should be guided by the standards in the following tables.

Many development proposals contain a variety of types of land uses. When
assessing these applications the developer will be required to take account of the
shared use of the site particularly if the different land uses are in use at different
times of the day.

Where parking standards in the following tables relate to Gross Floor Area (GFA) this
should be measured to the outside of the external walls of the development and will
include all public and privately accessible areas.

Where it is proposed to extend an existing building (or other land use) parking
provision should be based on the Gross Floor Area of the existing plus proposed
building area.

Parking bays should generally be 2.5 x 5.0 metres with a 6.0 metre aisle width
between bays. For nurseries or similar type of development where small children are
to be dropped off, an extra 0.9 metres should be provided between spaces.

Where it is necessary to accommodate car parking within a private court, the parking
must not dominate the space: no more than 50% of any court should be taken up by
parking spaces and access roads. This figure is a guideline and the planning
authority reserves the right to consider each case on its particular merits. In high
density schemes it will be expected that underground or decked parking will be
provided in order to achieve this.

In order to contribute to the Scottish Government’s carbon reduction targets the
Council will also encourage the provision of electric vehicle infrastructure as part of
developments with associated off-street car parking.

19

Page 35



Non-residential car parking spaces — all maximum amounts

1: RETAIL
Land Use City Centre | Inner City Outer City
Food retail outlets (>1000m2 GFA) 1 per 40m2 1 per 22m2 1 per 14m2
Non-food retail outlets (>1000m2 GFA) 1 per 50m2 1 per 30m2 1 per 20m2
Food/non-food retail outlets (<1000m2 GFA) 1 per 70m2 1 per 40m2 1 per 30m2
Motor trade (including vehicle display area, spares dept, | 0.5/1 staff; 1 | 0.5/1 staff; 1 | 0.5/1 staff; 1
servicing, tyre and exhaust centre) per 50m2 per 33m2 per 33m2
vehicle vehicle vehicle
display area; | display area; | display
1 per 50m2 1 per 25m2 area; 1 per
spares spares 25m2
department; departments; | spares
3/servicing 3/servicing departments
bay, 2/tyre bay, 2/tyre ; 3/servicing
and exhaust | and exhaust | bay, 2/tyre
bay bay and exhaust
bay
Petrol Filling Stations (note retail element assessed 1 per2staff | 1 per2staff | 1 per 2 staff
separately)
2. FINANCE, PROFESSIONAL AND OTHER SERVICES
Land use City Inner City | Outer
Centre City
Banks, Building Societies, etc. 1 per 1 per 1 per
90m2 62m2 40m2
3. FOOD AND DRINK
Land use City Inner City | Outer
Centre City
Restaurants and cafes 1 per 1 per 1 per
40m2 17m2 12.5m2
Pubs/clubs/discos/bars 1 per 1 per 1 per
40m2 25m2 12.5m2
Take-away 1 per 1 per 1 per
33m2 33m2 33m2
Drive Through Restaurants — requires adequate 1 per 1 per 1 per
queuing space 10m2 10m2 10m2
4. BUSINESS
Land use City Inner City | Outer
Centre City
Offices 1 per 1 per 1 per
80m2 50m2 30m2
5. GENERAL INDUSTRIAL
Land use City Inner City | Outer
Centre City
Industrial premises (excluding motor vehicle 1 per 1 per 1 per
workshops) 100m2 55m2 40m2
6. STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION
Land use City Inner City | Outer
Centre City
Warehousing — storage and distribution 1 per 1 per 1 per
300m2 167m2 100m2
Warehousing — wholesale trading 1 per 1 per 1 per
100m2 72m2 50m2
20

Page 36




7. HOTELS, HOSTELS

Land use City Inner City | Outer City
Centre
Hotels, boarding houses, guest houses, and motels 0.6 per 0.75 per 1 per
(restaurant and conference facilities counted bedroom bedroom bedroom
separately)
8. NON-RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTIONS
Land use City Inner City | Outer City
Centre
Nursery and Primary Schools 0.8 per 0.8 per 0.8 per
staff staff staff
Higher and Further Education 0.5 per 0.5 per 0.5 per
staff plus 1 | staff plus 1 | staff plus 1
per 15 per 15 per 15
students students students
Public Library 1 per 1 per 1 per
90m2 57m2 36m2
Public hall/Function room 1 per 1 per 1 per
50m2 27m2 18m2
Religious Institution 0.5 spaces | 1 space 1 space
per 10 per 10 per 10
seats seats seats
Medical Centres/Vets/Dentists 3 per 3 per 3 per
consulting | consulting | consulting
room plus | room plus | room plus
0.5 per 0.5 per 0.5 per
staff staff staff
Hospitals Merit (but | Merit (but Merit (but
will require | will require | will require
Travel Travel Travel
Plan) Plan) Plan)
9. ASSEMBLY AND LEISURE
Land use City Inner City | Outer
Centre City
Conference Centre 1 per 10 1per7.5 1 per5
seats seats seats
Cinemal/Concert hall/Theatre/Bingo hall 1 per 12 1 per8 1 per5
seats seats seats
Stadium 1 per 20 1 per 20 1 per 15
seats seats seats
Sports centre/facility 1 per 1 per 1 per
30m2 22m2 22m2

Residential Car Parking Standards

These should be treated as guidelines, rather than maximums. The level of parking

proposed in a new development will need to be agreed with the Planning Authority.

Residential Car Parking Standards — all guidelines

DWELLINGS

Land use City Inner City | Outer City
Centre

Residential Dwellings 1.5 1.75 2 allocated
allocated allocated spaces per
space per | space per | dwelling
dwelling dwelling (upto 3

Page 37

21



(upto 3 (upto 3 bedrooms),
bedrooms), | bedrooms), | 3 per

2 per 2 per dwelling (4
dwelling (4 | dwelling (4 | bedrooms).
or more bedrooms)

bedrooms)

1 bedroom flat (no designated spaces) 1 per unit 1 per unit 1.5 per unit

2 bedroom flat (no designated spaces) 1.5 per unit | 1.75 per 2 per unit

unit

3 bedroom flat (no designated spaces) 1.5 per unit | 1.75 per 2 per unit

unit

Housing Association/Social Housing (rented 0.8 per unit | 0.8 per unit | 0.8 per unit

only)

Special Needs Housing 1 per 1 per 1 per
resident resident resident
staff staff staff
member member member
plus 1 per | plus 1 per | plus 1 per
8 residents | 8 residents | 8 residents

Sheltered Housing/Care Home/Nursing Home 1 per 1 per 1 per
resident resident resident
staff staff staff
member member member
plus 1 per | plus 1 per | plus 1 per
8 residents | 3 residents | 3 residents

Purpose Built Student Accommodation 1 per 1 per 1 per
resident resident resident
staff staff staff
member member member
plus 1 per | plus 1 per | plus 1 per
10 10 10
students students students

Disabled Badge Holders’ Parking — all requirements

Reserved disabled parking should be provided as per the following table. Please note
that these are minimum standards.

Disabled Badge Holders Parking

Car park size up to 200 spaces

Car park maximum standard
size over 200 spaces

Employment Uses

1 space per disabled employee
plus 2 spaces or 5% of the total
number of spaces in the car
park or whichever is greater

6 spaces plus 2% of the total
number of spaces in the car
park

Retail, Leisure and Recreation
Uses

3 spaces or 6% of the total
number of spaces in the car
park or whichever is greater

4 spaces plus 4% of the total
number of spaces in the car
park

Spaces for drivers with a disability should generally be 2.5 x 5.0 metres with a 0.9
metre strip between adjacent spaces to allow access for wheelchairs. These spaces
should, where possible, be located within 50 metres of the entrance to buildings to

assist accessibility.

Delivery/loading/unloading Parking Standards - all guidelines

These standards apply to spaces required for vehicles regularly and necessarily
involved in the servicing of businesses or other buildings. It includes space for

Page 38

22




commercial vehicles delivering goods or collecting goods from premises and space

for loading and unloading.

Details of operational parking requirements should be considered as guidelines.
Where no operational requirement is specified requirements will be considered on a
case by case basis. However, it is important where possible that loading and other
servicing facilities are provided on site to prevent delivery vehicles queuing or using

on-street locations to load and unload.

Delivery/loading and unloading parking standards

1. RETAIL

Land Use

Food retail outlets (>1000m2 GFA)

Assessed on merit

Non-food retail outlets (>1000m2 GFA)

Assessed on merit

Food/non-food retail outlets (<1000m2 GFA)

Assessed on merit

Motor trade (including vehicle display area,
spares dept, servicing, tyre and exhaust centre)

Assessed on merit

2. FINANCE, PROFESSIONAL AND OTHER SERVICES

Land Use

Banks, Building Societies etc.

Assessed on merit

3. FOOD AND DRINK

Land Use

Restaurants and cafes

Assessed on merit

Pubs/clubs/discos/bars

Assessed on merit

Take-away

Assessed on merit

Drive Through Restaurants

Assessed on merit

4. BUSINESS

Land Use

Offices

Assessed on merit

5. GENERAL INDUSTRIAL

Land Use

Industrial premises (excluding motor vehicle
workshops)

1 loading bay up to 500m2 GFA, 2 loading bays
between 500m2 and 2500m2 GFA and 3 loading
bays over 2500m2

6. STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION

Land Use

Warehousing (storage and distribution and
wholesale trading)

1 loading bay up to 500m2 GFA, 2 loading bays
between 500m2 and 2500m2 GFA and 3 loading
bays over 2500m2

7. HOTELS, HOSTELS

Land Use

Hotels, boarding houses, guest houses, and
motels (restaurant and conference facilities
counted separately)

1 loading bay, and coach spaces will be required
for hotels with more than 50 bedrooms

8. NON RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTIONS

Land use

Nursery and Primary Schools

Pick-up/set down facilities for school buses and
cars

Higher and Further Education

Pick-up/set down facilities for school buses and
cars

Public Library

Space for mobile library van as appropriate

23

Page 39




Public hall/Function room | Provision for a coach

9. ASSEMBLY AND LEISURE

Land Use

Conference Centre 1 coach space per 50 seats

Cinema/Concert hall/Theatre/Bingo hall A space for coaches/cars to pick up and set down
as appropriate

Stadium Provision for coaches-to be assessed with Travel
Plan and accessibility

Sports centre/facility Provision for coaches-to be assessed with Travel
Plan and accessibility

Motorcycle Parking Standards

Motorcycle parking should be considered early in the design process. Facilities
should be conveniently located, adequately lit, well signed, secure and vandal proof.
It is also important that facilities are not placed in dark recesses or at the rear of car
parks where they are less likely to be used. They should be located as close as
possible to building entrances, ideally overlooked from a building or in the clear view
of pedestrians.

Wall loops or fixing devices anchored in or adjacent to the road can provide secure
anchor points for motorcycles. These need to be robust in order to prevent them from
being lifted out of the ground or cut with cutting tools. The anchor point should be
compatible with a wide range of bike types and locking devices. A height of 600mm
will accommodate a range of wheel sizes and helps prevent thieves from using the
ground as leverage for bolt cutters and jacks. The anchor points should be located
and designed in positions that do not pose a hazard to partially sighted or disabled
people. Motorcycle bays may also be acceptable.

Motorcycle Parking Standards — all minimums

Land use Motorcycle parking provisions
1. RETAIL
Food Retail Outlets (»500m2 GFA) 1 per 1500m2 with a minimum of 1 space for staff and 1

space for customers

Non-Food Retail Outlets (>500m2 GFA) 1 per 1500m2 with a minimum of 1 space for staff and 1
space for customers

Food/Non-Food Retail Outlets (<500m2 1 space for staff and 1 space for customers

GFA)

2. FINANCIAL, PROFESSIONAL AND OTHER SERVICES

Banks, Building Societies, etc. 1 per 1200m2 with a minimum of 1 space for staff and 1

space for customers

3. FOOD AND DRINK

Restaurants and cafes 1 per 300m2 public area with a minimum of 1 space for

Pubs and Winebars staff and 1 space for customers

Fast food Takeaway

4. BUSINESSES

Offices 1 per 1000m2 for employees and 1 per 4000m2 for
visitors

5. GENERAL INDUSTRIAL

Industrial premises 1 per 2000m2 for employees and 1 per 8000m2 for
visitors

6. STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION

Warehousing 1 per 6000m2 for employees and 1 per 16000m2 for
visitors

24

Page 40




7. HOTELS, HOSTELS

Hotels, boarding houses, guest houses,
and motels

1 per 15 bedrooms with a minimum of 1 space for
customers and 1 space for staff

8. NON RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTIONS

Primary School

1 per 8 staff with a minimum of 1

Secondary School

1 per 8 staff with a minimum of 1

College/University

1 per 8 staff with a minimum of 2

Medial Centre

1 per 25 parking spaces with a minimum of 1 space for
staff and 1 space for customers.

9. ASSEMBLY AND LEISURE

Public Library

Cinema/Concert Hall/Theatre/Bingo Hall

Conference Centre

Public Hall

Stadium

Sports Centre/facility

1 per 25 parking spaces with a minimum of 1 space for
staff and 1 space for customers.

10. RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTIONS

Special Needs Housing

1 visitor space per 25 units with a minimum of 1 space
and 1 space per 25 staff with a minimum of 1

Sheltered Housing/Care Home/Nursing
Home

1 visitor space per 25 units with a minimum of 1 space
and 1 space per 25 staff with a minimum of 1

Hospitals

Assessed individually - a Travel Plan will be required.

Purpose Built Student Accommodation

1 per 25 beds and 1 per 25 staff with a minimum of 1
space for staff and 1 space for students

Flats (<6)

Flats (7-10)

Flats (11-15)

Flats (15-25)

Flats (26-30)

Flats (31+)

1 space per 8 flats with a minimum of 1

Cycle Parking Standards

It is important that developers provide secure cycle parking at each new
development, whether that be at a place of work or residence, so that individuals can
make a choice of whether they wish to cycle to work with the knowledge that their
bike will be secure at both ends of the journey.

This Guidance will be applied to:

¢ New developments and extensions to existing developments;

e Conversion of existing buildings involving a change of use; and
e Material changes of use

The location and provision of cycle parking facilities differs between short and long
stay. Drawings submitted for a planning application should clearly indicate the
number of spaces available for bicycles, and

For short stay:
e Precise location

e Design (usually Sheffield stand) as defined in ‘Key Elements of Cycle Parking
Provision’

For long stay:
¢ Internal building location or

25

Page 41



e External location and design
Short Stay Parking

Short stay cycle parking is for visitors and/ or customers. This type of facility should
be located in a safe, convenient, accessible and prominent position, preferably on-
site and adjacent to the entrance of a building, and an absolute maximum of 50m
from the entrance. Buildings with more than one entrance should either have cycle
parking readily accessible from every entrance, or a smaller number of facilities
should be located at each entrance.

The facility should be well signed and either lit, or placed close to a source of light. If
possible, it should be monitored by closed circuit television and be visible to on-site
security staff. As weather protection for cycle parking is highly desirable developers
will need to consider this at an early stage in the design of new developments. The
facility should be located so as not to cause an obstruction to pedestrians or partially
sighted people. For short stay parking, Sheffield stands are recommended for most
types of development. Wall loops may be acceptable in certain circumstances, for
instance in areas where pavement widths are restricted. It should be noted however
that stands that support the bicycle by one wheel only are NOT satisfactory.

Long Stay Parking

Long stay parking should be provided where cycle parking is required in excess of six
hours, this includes residential, office and hotel developments. More secure facilities
in the form of cycle cages or lockable compounds should be provided. These must
be covered. Alternatively, secure compounds within buildings may be acceptable,
provided they are located at ground level and are accessible. The compound must
be under continuous supervision or have a shared key arrangement where each
cyclist has a key to the outer door. Sheffield stands should also be provided within
the bike store for increased security. On larger sites, small clusters of cycle parking
facilities are preferable to large, central parking compounds.

Individual lockable facilities are a preference at residential developments, however
there is a realisation that these will take up a greater footprint compared to a cycle
compound. Aberdeen City Council will therefore look for flatted developments of six
flats and under to contain individual lockable facilities at a ratio of one space per flat,
which will take up approximately the same footprint as one car parking space.
Where higher density developments take place with limited, or no car parking, the
expectation is that the ratio of flats to cycle parking is also one to one.

Sheffield Stand Specifications

The material and finish of stands can vary greatly, and only the higher specification of
stainless steel and galvanised, powder or nylon coated should be used.

Stands should be 750mm high and a minimum of 750mm long. The frame of the
stand should have a minimum outer diameter of 42mm. A desirable minimum

26

Page 42



distance of 1000mm should be provided between stands to accommodate two cycles
per stand. Stand ends should either be embedded in concrete, bolted into the
ground or welded to parallel bars at ground level to form a ‘toast’ rack system.
Adequate space should be provided at either end of the stand to enable cycles to be
easily removed. The diagram below indicates the necessary dimensions for Sheffield
stands and the amount of space required around each stand.

Figure 4 — Sheffield Stand Dimensions

Minimum
200 radius

Note : All dimensions are in millimetres

Cycle Parking Standards

Please note that without exception, a minimum of two short stay stands, or four cycle

parking spaces, should be provided with all types of use. Within the centre of town, if

the entrance of a development is located within 50m of city centre cycle parking
stands these can be included as part of the short stay cycle spaces required in the

development quota.

Land use Cycle parking provision
1. RETAIL

Food Retail Outlets (500m2 GFA) 1 per 250m2
Non-Food Retail Outlets (500m2 GFA) 1 per 300m2
Food/Non-Food Retail Outlets (<5600m2 gfa) 1 per 300m2

2. FINANCIAL, PROFESSIONAL AND OTHER

SERVICES

Banks, Building Societies, etc. 1 per 250m2

3. FOOD AND DRINK

Restaurants and cafes

1 per 10 staff; 1 per 20 seats

Pubs and Winebars

1 per 100m2

Fast food Takeaway

1 per 50m2

Page 43

27



4. BUSINESSES

Offices 1 per 300m2
5. GENERAL INDUSTRIAL
Industrial premises 1 per 500m2

6. STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION

Warehousing

1 per 1000m2

7. HOTELS, HOSTELS

Hotels, boarding houses, guest houses, and
motels

1 per 10 staff

8. NON RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTIONS

Primary School

1 per 10 staff or students

Secondary School

1 per 10 staff or students

College/University

1 per 8 staff or students

Medical Centre

1 per 20 staff plus 1 per 20 staff for visitors

9. ASSEMBLY AND LEISURE

Public Library

1 per 20 staff plus 1 per 10 staff for visitors

Cinema/Concert Hall/Theatre/Bingo Hall

1 per 10 staff plus 1 per 20 peak period
visitors

Conference Centre

1 per 50 seats for staff plus 1 per 50 seats for
visitors

Public Hall 1 per 10 staff plus 1 per 20 peak period
visitors
Stadium 1 per 10 staff plus 1 per 20 peak period

visitors

Sports Centre/facility

1 per 10 staff plus 1 per 20 peak period
visitors

10. RESIDENTIAL INSTITUTIONS

Special Needs Housing

1 per 10 staff

Sheltered Housing/Care Home/Nursing Home

1 per 10 staff

Hospitals

1 per 20 staff plus 1 per 20 staff for visitors

Purpose Built Student Accommodation

1 per 3 students

Flats (<6) 1 per flat

Flats (7-10) 1 per 1 flats
Flats (11-15) 1 per 1 flats
Flats (15-25) 1 per 1 flats
Flats (26-30) 1 per 1 flats
Flats (31+) 1 per 1 flats

Where a planning application for the intensification of an existing use or a change of

use is made, there could be a need to provide additional cycle parking on the site in

line with the standards.

If there is no room for facilities to be provided on-site, the

planning authority may ask for appropriate facilities to be provided off-site. Such
provision should be within 50 metres of the development.

Page 44

28



8. PARKING IN CONSERVATION AREAS

Introduction

Large parts of Aberdeen, mainly to the south and west of the city centre, have been
designated as conservation areas in order to protect and, where possible, enhance
their architectural character and environmental amenity.

The typical layout of most of these areas consists of broad streets, often tree lined,
occasionally having service roads and gardens between the street and the buildings.
The buildings may vary in size and style, but generally they have small front gardens
and long walled gardens to the rear, frequently accessed from a rear lane running
parallel to the street.

The increasing demand for off street parking brought about by ever expanding car
ownership, and the introduction of traffic management schemes, generates pressure
for car parking in garden areas, both to the front and rear of commercial and
residential properties in conservation areas.

Statutory and Other Requirements

In conservation areas, planning permission is required to form a car park within a
front or rear garden, and in some situations, conservation area consent may also be
required where the proposals entail demolition work. Planning permission is also
required to form a car park within the curtilage of a listed building, whilst listed
building consent is required if any structure within the curtilage of a listed building is
to be altered or removed. In all cases, including those where no planning or listed
building consents are required, there is a requirement to apply to the City Council to
form a footway crossing. Applicants should contact the Planning Authority at the
earliest opportunity.

Trees in conservation areas are statutorily protected, and their removal without prior
consent from the Council constitutes an offence, as does the removal of any tree that
is protected by a tree preservation order. Consent is also required before any work,
such as lopping or thinning, is carried out to a protected tree.

Removal of existing parking spaces

Whilst generally the pressure from property owners is to create additional car parking
space, there may be an occasion when an owner will wish to convert existing parking
space back to landscaping. Residents will be encouraged to restore private car
parking in conservation areas to its original use as garden space, to help restore the
character of an area. The condition to this is that the planning authority must be
satisfied that any loss of off-street parking will not have a detrimental effect on road
safety.

PARKING IN FRONT GARDENS

The conversion of front gardens for car parking will only be permitted where:
e the site is outwith the West End Office Area;
e rear garden parking is not an option;
e where there are no implications for road safety;

29

Page 45



e where there is no impact on significant street or garden trees; and
e where on-street parking is readily available in the vicinity.

Other situations will be considered on their own merit, but with the provision that the
garden will have to be large enough to take a single car whilst leaving a reasonable
space between the parked car and the house, and at least 50% of the garden ground
for soft landscaping. A detailed list of the criteria for assessing proposals for new

driveways are set out below.

Road Safety
All applications to form a driveway must be assessed against road safety
standards to ensure they do not present hazards to other road users or
pedestrians.

Definitions of Road Types

A Classified Road is a highway which has been identified as being of
importance for the movement of traffic. Classifications given are Class A, B or
C, and any new access onto a classified road requires planning permission.
Primary Distributor Roads form the primary network for the urban area and
comprise trunk roads and important classified roads. All Trunk Roads are
Class A. District Distributor Roads may be class A, B or C whilst Local
Distributor Roads may be Class B or C, but are generally unclassified. Trunk
Roads and Primary Routes are shown in the Finalised Aberdeen Local Plan in
the Additional City Wide Proposals maps.

Access onto Classified Roads

There is a presumption against granting planning permission for a driveway
onto a trunk road or primary distributor road. On district distributor roads there
is also a presumption against granting consent for driveways, but this may be
relaxed provided the proposal meets road safety criteria, and vehicles are
able to enter and exit the parking area in forward gear. Local distributor roads
are treated similarly to district distributors but without the requirement to enter
and exit in forward gear.

Visibility
Driveways must be positioned to allow adequate visibility, particularly on busy
pedestrian routes, in accordance with national standards.

Proximity to Road Junctions
Driveways will not normally be closer to a junction than 15 metres, although
this may be relaxed if the road is lightly trafficked.

Footpath Crossings

No more than one footpath crossing per property will be permitted, except in
situations where a large house may have a long frontage when an ‘in’ and
‘out’ may be acceptable.

Driveways

Driveways must be at least 5.0 metres in length, and new houses must have a
driveway of at least 6.0 metres. Where, however, a driveway is more than 7.0
metres long, it must be at least 10.0 metres in length to prevent the possibility

Page 46

30



of two cars being parked, with the second car overhanging the footpath. The
gradient of the driveway must not normally exceed 1:20, although 1:15 may
be acceptable in some circumstances, depending on the surface texture
employed. The first two metres of the driveway adjacent to the footpath must
not be surfaced with loose material such as gravel, to prevent material being
carried onto the footpath or roadway. The driveway must be drained internally,
with no surface water discharging onto the roadway. A driveway might not be
permitted if it is accessed from a ‘Pay and Display Area’, or via a parking lay-
by, where the lay-by is regularly occupied.

Planning Criteria in relation to Parking in Front Gardens

Planning criteria considered when assessing whether consent may be granted
for parking in front gardens of listed buildings or buildings in conservation
areas. Similar criteria apply to front gardens of flats.

General Criteria

1. No more than 35% of the front garden area may be given over for the
combined parking area, driveway and any turning area, or 50% if footpaths
and other hard surfaced areas are included. At least 50% of the garden area
should be left in topsoil to permit soft landscaping.

2. Where the property originally had cast iron railings, their reinstatement will
be encouraged to lessen the impact of parked cars, failing which some other
form of enclosure will be required, or appropriate soft landscaping.

3. The formation of the access driveway or parking area must not result in the
loss of any street trees or significant garden trees.

4. Consent will not be granted where the property has a rear garden area,
suitable for parking, which is accessible from a rear lane or side street.

5. Where the garden is owned by more than one resident, owners will not be
permitted a separate driveway and parking area each unless they can be
achieved without fragmenting the garden or unduly reducing on-street
parking. A communal driveway and parking area may be permissible provided
they occupy no more than 35% of the front garden, or 50% if footpaths and
other hard surfaced areas are included.

6. Where the building is in multiple ownership, the formation of an access
driveway for one or more owners should not result in any of the remaining
owners having no opportunity to park in the street adjacent to their property.

7. Consent will not normally be granted for parking in garden areas in front of
tenement flats.

Situations where classification of road and location of driveway permits
reversing out from the parking area

1. The parking area should be no closer to the front wall of the property than
1.0 metre.

2. The driveway must be no wider than 3.0 metres, or 3.5 metres if combined
with the footpath.

Situations where classification of road permits garden parking provided
it can be entered and exited in forward gear

1. The parking and turning areas should be no closer to the front wall of the
property than 1.0 metre.

2. The design of any turning area should be such that it can be used only for
turning and not as additional parking area.

Page 47

31



3. Suitable landscaping should be provided to screen both parking and turning
areas, and generally to soften the intrusive effect of cars parked in front of the
property.

E
E
[}
-
E| E|E o
E| EIE |VE 3
£E| E i
=l Elg f‘i oft landscaping
E ELE =] =
2| al= = o
] W e~ o
~ [T
[=]
w v
Parking Bay
L L
1=
|-73.[}Dﬂm—~1
Entrance max. width
0.5m pp—sejm—— 3.500

soft landscaping | Combined footpaih & parking max. width

- 8.500m minimum i

Sketch layout of smallest front garden capable of accepting a single car parking

space whilst retaining 50% garden ground for soft landscaping.
Total area + 51m2approx
Total area of landscaping = 25m2approx

Page 48

32



PARKING IN REAR GARDENS

In certain areas of the City, where rear lanes provide access to back gardens, it may
be acceptable to convert part of these back gardens to car parks. In order to
preserve as much as possible of the amenity provided by these gardens, the area
given over to parking will be the minimum required to provide no more than one car
space for each flat, and the treatment of other areas, including boundary walls,
landscaped areas and screen planting, will require careful consideration. In the case
of houses, or houses which have been subdivided into a small number of flats, it may
be easier to provide parking space, as most rear gardens will be able to
accommodate a small number of cars, whilst still leaving a good proportion of garden
ground unaffected.

Sketch layout of parking space at rear of typical tenement. 1
Wall lowered

o Tmelre

abave ground
leval approx. Hard surface area

E-

g

I~ 2m &m Drying/

min min amenity
= area

—>
(—
Wall retained

at ariginal
height

3,1 3 L,

r
3

Footpath

N

L)
ar
F-
h
=]

&m Outhouse

<+— REAR LANE ——

General requirements for Parking areas in Gardens

1. The car park should be internally drained and should incorporate Sustainable
Urban Drainage Systems to deal with surface water run off.

2. Parking spaces should be delineated on the site.
Parking Layout in Rear Gardens

Where car parks in rear areas are permissible, their layout will vary depending on the
site characteristics and parking requirements. A high priority is placed on retaining
significant trees, original outbuildings such as stables or coach houses, boundary
features such as granite walling and even changes in level which add interest to the
site.

Parking bays should be 5.0 metres by 2.5 metres, and access aisles around 6.0
metres wide. Adequate space should be allowed to permit turning entirely within the
site. A generous space of around 5.0 metres should be allowed between the parking
area and the rear lane to permit adequate landscaping, and for trees to develop
without threatening boundary walls.

33

Page 49



Surfacing of Parking Areas

An area of granite setts or other similar finish is required at the entrance to the car
park, to provide an identifiable boundary between the lane and the car park and to
retain any loose materials which may be used to surface the car park. The parking
surface may be constructed in a variety of durable materials such as block pavers,
tarmac or gravel. Water bound materials such as clay and sand based hoggin or
granite dust are temporary measures which are not acceptable. Where the surface of
the parking area is to be gravel, the length of granite setts or similar material at the
entrance to the car park must be at least 2metres, to prevent gravel being dragged
onto the public road or lane.

Rear Boundary Walls

Boundary walls are generally around two metres high, built of granite pinnings or
granite rubble, usually left exposed but occasionally harled. They will normally have a
granite or red brick-on- edge coping. Openings formed in rear boundary walls should
be of a width of around 3.5 metres to allow vehicular access. A length of boundary
wall on each side of the opening will likely have to be reduced in height to permit
visibility in each direction for parking areas serving commercial premises or more
than a single residential unit. Beyond this the wall must step back up to its original
height, to provide a degree of screening of the car park. Materials matching the
original should be used in any alterations to boundary walls.

COMMON TYPES OF COPE

= .
rectangular John Gunn brick on edge bulinose brick
granita cope granite copa copa an edge cope

34

Page 50



Gates

Close-boarded timber pedestrian pass gates, or vehicular gates to a single
residential unit, either stained or painted and constructed to the same height as the
boundary wall, are a common feature of these lanes, and provide reasonable security
and privacy. Cast and wrought iron or mild steel gates can be used at entrances to
commercial premises or flatted developments, and can be effectively employed in
conjunction with railings on top of an adjacent lowered wall. Ornate scrollwork is
however, alien to Aberdeen’s special architectural character, particularly in the
context of rear or service lanes, and ought to be avoided. Gates must always open
into the garden rather than into the lane.

Trees and Landscaping in Rear Gardens

Where rear garden ground is to be given over for car parking there will be an
inevitable loss of amenity space, or potential amenity space where the ground in
question has been neglected. This type of space is of great importance for visual
stimulation, wildlife, air quality, sustainable drainage, and practical and leisure uses
such as clothes drying or simply gardening and sitting outdoors. The area given over
for parking should therefore, be kept to an absolute minimum. In order that garden
ground remains the dominant feature of the garden it is suggested that no more than
45%-50% be given over for parking and other areas of hard surfacing, although these
percentages may increase slightly in flatted situations to allow one parking space per
flat. Where consent is given for the formation of parking area in garden ground, it will
be a condition of that consent, that the remainder of the garden will be landscaped in
accordance with an approved scheme. It is a normal requirement of such conditions
that the landscaping be maintained for a period of five years following the
implementation of the landscaping.

The Council has a statutory duty to have regard to the preservation of existing trees
and to require the planting of new trees in appropriate circumstances. In that respect
it should be noted that trees within conservation areas are statutorily protected, and
that it is an offence to remove a protected tree before express consent has been
granted by the City Council. A tree survey is required if there are any trees over
75mm in diameter at chest height. Existing trees contribute greatly to the
attractiveness and character of a locality, and must be retained and protected from
any damaging construction activities. An area no less than half the tree height or
canopy spread, whichever is the greater, (British Standard 5837; Trees in Relation to
Construction), must be kept free of any disturbance such as changes in ground
levels, excavation and compaction. Where there is insufficient space to comply with
the British Standard, encroachment into the protected area will be permissible only if
it can be demonstrated to the satisfaction of the planning authority, that the proposal
can be carried out in a manner which will not cause damage to the trees, or
detrimentally affect their setting.

The council will normally require the planting of new trees as part of proposals for the
landscaping of parking areas. Such trees can be particularly effective when planted
just inside the feu, near the rear lane. The species of tree chosen should be the
largest type suitable for the particular site, as these will tend to produce the greatest
impact and environmental benefits. Native species of trees should be used where
suitable.

35

Page 51



2.0m | 3.5m 2.0m
GRANITE COPE T BRICK ON EDGE COPE
i I I I } f il BEEENEIRINNAEL
WALL HEIGHT g
1.8m APPROX. 5
I s
0.6m APPROX. |

Alternative methods of finishing lowered walls at rear parking areas
Lock-up Garages in Rear Gardens

The formation of lock-up garages off rear lanes, serving houses or a small number of
flats, can usually be achieved satisfactorily. The design and positioning of the garage
should be given careful consideration, particularly with regard to the effect the garage
will have on the appearance of the lane. Where, as in most situations, the garage
opens onto the lane, the outer wall of the garage should be on the same line as the
garden wall, and not recessed back from it, as this helps to maintain the delineation
of the lane. This may affect the choice of garage door as it is not acceptable for the
door to encroach onto the lane as it is opened.

The formation of ranks of garages in the rear gardens of tenements has an extremely
detrimental effect on the appearance of rear garden areas, and will not normally be
permitted. They occupy more garden ground than simple parking spaces. They also
protrude above garden walls and cannot easily be screened by trees or other
landscaping measures. It is virtually impossible to recreate any sense of enclosure in
these situations, and the turning space in front of the garages tend to become
desolate areas which attract vandalism. Additionally the formation of banks of
garages can greatly increase the built footprint of the feu to the extent that it could
push it over the 33% maximum area which is generally considered permissible to be
developed.

36

Page 52



9. DRIVEWAYS GUIDE

These guidelines have been prepared to advise householders on the consents that
are required from the Council if they are proposing to build a driveway.

In seeking consent for a new driveway applicants (householders) should note that it
is possible that up to three separate consents may be required including:

e Planning Permission (Town and Country Planning Scotland Act 1997 [as
amended by the Planning etc Scotland Act 2006])

e Road Consent (Roads Scotland Act 1984)

e Landlord’s Consent

Planning Permission

Reasons for requiring planning permission include:
e The property is a flat;
e construction work involves over 0.5 metres of earthworks [excavation or
raising of ground level];
e the verge to the footway has grass over 2.5 metres wide;
e the driveway accesses on to a classified road*;
o the property is a listed building or is situated in a conservation area.

Permission will not be granted for a driveway across an amenity area or road side
verge unless it would produce a demonstrable improvement in road safety and have
no adverse effect on the amenity of the area.

*Local authorities are obliged to consult Transport Scotland, the trunk road authority,
when they receive planning applications for any development that lies within 67
metres of the trunk road or where there may be any impact on traffic using the trunk
road network.

Roads Consent

Permission will always be required from the Council for the installation of a driveway.
If the driveway is the subject of a planning application then roads issues will be dealt
with as part of the planning process, otherwise an application is made direct to the
Roads Authority for permission to construct the access. Applications which affect the
trunk road network may be referred to Transport Scotland for a recommendation.

The following conditions should be met to comply with the Roads Authority
requirements and standards. These conditions apply to all driveway applications,
including those that do not require an application for planning permission.

Length of the Driveway

The length of the driveway must be a minimum of 5 metres. This is considered to be
the minimum length which will accommodate the average car, without overhanging
the footway. Vehicles that overhang the footway cause a road safety hazard to
pedestrians, especially young children and those with a disability.

37

Page 53



Driveways in new houses must have a minimum length of 6 metres. If a driveway
application is longer than 7 metres, it must then be at least 10 metres long. This
requirement is to prevent two cars parking with the second car overhanging the
footway.

These standards are set for the average length of car and it is noted that some
smaller cars are less than this standard. However once permission is granted the
Council has no control over what type of car might use the driveway and it must
therefore consider not only the existing use, but also the future use of the site.
Driveways, which do not meet the minimum specified length of 5 metres, will be
refused.

Visibility

Driveways must be positioned to enable the required visibility, including pedestrian
visibility, to be achieved in accordance with National Standards. Visibility is
particularly important on popular pedestrian routes and near schools. A driveway
should also meet the public road at right angles and a vehicle should be able to enter
and exit the driveway at right angles to the road, so that a driver can see clearly in
both directions without having to turn round excessively. Driveways which do not
meet the minimum requirements for visibility will be refused.

Distance from a Junction

Driveways should be a minimum of 15 metres from a junction, although there may be
circumstances where this may be relaxed on lightly trafficked roads.

Number of Footway Crossings per Property

In general only one footway crossing per property is allowed. This is to avoid a
proliferation of crossings, causing a road safety hazard to pedestrians. In some
situations this may be relaxed, for example at large houses with a long frontage
where an “in” and an “out” may be permitted. Where properties have suitable
existing facilities at the rear of the property it is unlikely that permission will be
granted for further crossings at the front of the building.

Access from Parking Lay-bys

A driveway will not generally be permitted if access is taken from a parking lay-by,
which is regularly in use. Similarly access from a “Pay and Display” area may also
be refused.

Gradient

The gradient of a driveway should generally not exceed 1 in 20 although this may be
relaxed in certain circumstances to a maximum of 1 in 15, provided suitable
measures such as nonslip surfacing are employed. It is acknowledged that a parked
vehicle could slide on a gradient greater than 1 in 15, and gradients greater 1 in 15
will not therefore be permitted.

38

Page 54



Drainage

A driveway should be internally drained with no surface water discharging on to
the public road. This is to prevent any flooding on the public road, with ice perhaps
forming in the winter.

Construction of the Footway Crossing

A driveway must be served by a footway crossing constructed by the City Council to
ensure that it is constructed to a suitable standard and that any services under the
footway have suitable protection.

Loose material e.g. stone chippings must not be used to surface the first 2 metres
of the driveway adjacent to the footway. Only one footway crossing will be

allowed per property to avoid any impact on road safety. The normal width of a
footway crossing is 3 metres but this may be increased to 6 metres for a double
driveway.

The applicant is responsible for the payment of all works involved.
Landlords/Other Consents

In addition Superior’s or Landlord’s consent may be required for the Works.
Solicitor’s advice should be sought on this matter. Where the Council owns the
property, the Council’'s consent as landlord will be required. Where the property was
previously in the ownership of the Council, there may also be a requirement to seek
“Superior’s Consent” from the Council for the Works. This should be obtained
before work commences.

Where a change of use of private or public open space is required please contact the
council.

Driveway application to Enterprise, Planning and Infrastructure

An application for a driveway should be made to Enterprise, Planning and
Infrastructure. Staff will give advice on what is required for a driveway and whether
the driveway will require a planning application. If no planning application is required
they will advise if the driveway is acceptable with regard to council standards. For
further information please contact:

Planning and Sustainable Development
Enterprise, Planning & Infrastructure
Aberdeen City Council

Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North

Marischal College

Broad Street

Aberdeen, AB10 1AB

Tel: 01224 523470, Fax: 01224 636181
Email pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

Some of the questions that will require to be answered are:
Is the property a council house?

39

Page 55



Is the property a flat?

Is the driveway to be at right angles to the road?
Is the driveway to be a minimum of 5 metres long?

All applications must include a suitable plan clearly showing the location of the
proposed driveway and the dimensions along with the construction details. All

applications must satisfy the standards described above or the application may be
rejected.

40

Page 56



10. AUTOMATIC TELLER MACHINES (“CASH MACHINES”)

The location of ATMs has implications for road safety and parking. Ideally auto-
tellers should be located along active building frontages in public areas where there
is a high level of pedestrian movements and passive surveillance. These may be at
main shopping streets, supermarkets, neighbourhood shopping areas or bank
premises, but other locations may be acceptable. This guidance clarifies where new
ATMs may be provided.

The suitability of new ATMs will be considered on the following criteria:

* The level of pedestrian movements;

» Positioning of the ATM in relation to active building frontages and passive
surveillance;

» Width of pavements around the proposed ATM,;

+ The availability of parking adjacent to the proposed sites where there is
no obstruction to surrounding uses or driveways;

* Appearance of the ATM and impact on the surrounding built and natural
environment.

The auto-teller should not be positioned adjacent to or near junctions or bends in the
road or in areas where there is poor visibility. The provision of a proposed ATM
should not cause obstruction to existing pedestrian movements.

In addition, there shall be a presumption against granting planning permission for
automatic telling machines where it can be clearly demonstrated:

a) that the width of the footpavement in the vicinity of the machine is restricted in
relation to the observed level of pedestrian movements along that section, and
may furthermore be restricted by the presence of bus stops or light controlled
pedestrian crossings, such that the congestion created by persons standing at
the machine may cause an obstruction to the free flow of pedestrian movement
along the footpavement.

b) that the machine is to be located within 3 metres of the corner of the building at a
street junction where persons standing at the machine may cause an obstruction
to the free flow of pedestrian movement along the converging footpavements.

c) that the machine is to be located where it is not readily visible from a public
thoroughfare or is in an area poorly lit.

d) that the installation of the machine would be too detrimental to the external
appearance of the property or would result in the loss of, or unsatisfactory
alteration to, an internal feature of architectural or historical importance.

41

Page 57



Relevant Links:

Aberdeen City Council Directional Signage Guidance for Paths 2011
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=39148&sID=3159

Aberdeen City Council Travel Plan Builder
http://www.aberdeencitytravelplans.co.uk

Aberdeen Local Transport Strategy (2008-2012)
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/web/files/sl Planning/local transport strateqy08.pdf

Aberdeen Local Transport Strategy (2008 -2012) Monitoring Update Paper 2009
http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/nmsruntime/saveasdialog.asp?lID=25606&sI|D=2866

Aberdeen Outdoor Access Forum

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning environment/environment/core paths/pla o
utdooraccessforum.asp

Aberdeen Core Paths Plan 2009

http://www.aberdeencity.gov.uk/planning environment/environment/core paths/pla c
orepaths.asp

Designing Streets: A Policy Statement for Scotland 2010
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Resource/Doc/307126/0096540.pdf

First Group Plc Aberdeen
http://www.firstgroup.com/ukbus/aberdeen/

Lowland Path Construction: A guide to Good Practice 2001

http://www.pathsforall.org.uk/component/option,com docman/ltemid,69/gid,101/task,
doc details/

Nestrans — The Transport Strategy for Aberdeen City and Shire
http://www.nestrans.org.uk/home.html

Signage Guidance for Outdoor Access: A Guide to Good Practice 2009

http://www.pathsforall.org.uk/component/option,com docman/Itemid,69/qid,106/task,
doc details/

42

Page 58



Stagecoach Bus

http://www.stagecoachbus.com/

Transport Assessments and Implementation: A Guide 2005
http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2005/08/1792325/23264

Page 59

43



4

ABERDEEN

CITY COUNCIL

For help with language / interpreting and

other formats of communication support,
please contact:

©Fl/20Rel e aae SR FAE0E
G AL Grely w3l 04
101224 523 470

FHE @A FEE |

U RS B YR R RO MR SRR
401224 523 470

Ecnu TpebyeTcs nomolb npy Beibope
A3blka / NepeBoa4MKa Unu Apyrux
cnocobos 06LeHNs , 3BOHUTE MO

TenedoHy :01224 523 470

a.n)ﬂ'l/‘ul]'l uaj.».a;.lﬁ.:\sLuw‘_;b J gl
Jua ela il o5 AN Juaiy) Jailu g g
01224 523 470 S 2l

UJ/:}QLQIHIMUf(ﬁ,{j”)(}U:} ol
(AT L2 i pS s Srak LEKE
01224 523 470 /&1

W razie potrzebu pomocy z jezykiem

angielskim albo z ttumaczeniem, albo

jakiej kolwiek innej pomocy do

porozumienia, prosze skontaktowac:
01224 523 470

\_ /

E-Mail: pi@aberdeencity.gov.uk

www.aberdeencity.gov.uk

Page 60



S . Agenda ltem 2.3

NOTICE OF REVIEW

UNDER SECTION 43A(8) OF THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCOTLAND} ACT 1997 (AS AMENDED)IN
RESPECT OF DECISIONS ON LOCAL DEVELOPMENTS

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (SCHEMES OF DELEGATION AND LOCAL REVIEW PROCEDURE)
. (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (APPEALS) (SCOTLAND) REGULATIONS 2008

IMPORTANT: Please read and foliow the guidance notes provided when completing this form.
Failure to supply ali the relevant information could invalidate vour notice of review.

Use BLOCK CAPITALS if completing in manuscript

Applicani(s) ' , Agent (if any)

Name  |[WASHBANY ' |  Name EuHMing 4o (Ae) U0 |
Address 5l Shue ol TEeRkes Address Appyand Hoved
BEsLiooER | - b cASTEILL
’ Alpeiszeny A& .GerT
Postcode Postcode .
Contact Telephone 1 |. - Contact Telephone 1 o7
Contact Telephone 2 : Contact Telephone 2 |
- Fax No Fax No T ]
E-mailt [ — | E-mailr - | ]

.t

Mark this box {o confirm all contact should be
- through this representative:
‘ ‘ Yes No
* Do you agree to correspondence regarding your revisw being sent by e-mail? X] : |:]

Planning authority ' IA2EeneE) ATy ConnzAl l

Planning authority's application reference number Pl 14773 |
Site address A4 SAUS Buly TEACE

Description of proposed  ExdascE oF OE Forl claSs S C@r@.; mx&, 1
development ~hD Letral (Canis &) & Al MAE (Sol gre—ars

Date of application |20 Sefr 14 | Date of decision {if any) ahzliy 1

Note. This notice must be served on the planning authority within three months of the date of the decision
notice or from the date of expiry of the period allowad for determining the application.

. : =AW =
'Page 1of4 - & JAN

mamewmmEE R 0 L

Page 61




MNotlce of Review
Nature of application

Application for planning permission (including householder application) ' E]
' Application for planning permission in principle ' D
3. Further application (including development that has not yet commenced and where a time limit

has been imposed; renewal of planning parmission; and/or modification, variation or removaf of
a planning condition)

4, Application for approval of matters specified in conditions _ D

DN

Reasons for seeking review

1. Refusal of application by appointed officer

Failure by appointed officer to determine the application within the period allowed for
determination of the application

3. Conditions imposed on consent by appointed officer

OOK

Review procedure

The Local Review Body will decide on the procedure fo be used to determine your review and may at any
time during the review process require that further information or representations be made io enable them

to determine the review. Further information may be required by one or a combination of procedures, -

such as: written submissions; the holding of one or more hearing sessions and/or inspecting the land
which is the subject of the review case.

Please indicate what procedure (or combination of procedures) ;you think is most appropriate for the
handling of your review. You may tick more than one box if you wish the review to be conducted by a
combination of procedures.

1. Further writien submissions , : ]
2. One or more hearing sessions . D
3. Site inspection ‘ _ X]
4  Assessment of review documents only, with no further procedure E

if you have marked box 1 or 2, please explain here which of the matters (as set out in your statement
below) you believe ought to be subject of that procedure, and why you consnder further submissions or a
hearing are necessary;

Site inspection

in the event that the Local Review Body decides to inspact the review site, In your opihion:

Yes No
1. Canthe site be viewed entirely from public land? ' o ' D
2 lIsit possibie for the site to be accessed safely, and without bérriers- 10 entry? _ X []

i there are reasons why you think the Local Review Body would be unsble to undertake an
unaccompanied site inspection, please explain here:

Key AVLABLE Fot- lockdn CraTe:

Page2of4

Page 62




Notice of Review
Statement '
You.must state, in full, why you are seeking a review on your appligation. Your statement must set out all
matters you consider require to be taken into account in determining your review. Note: you may not
have a further opportunity to add to your statemnent of review at a later date. |t is therefore essential that
you submit with your notice of review, all necessary information and ev;dence that you rely on and wish
the Local Review Body to consider as part of your review,

.

If the L.ocal Review Body issues a notice requesting ﬁ)rther information from any other person or body,
you will have a period of 14 days in which to comment on any additional matter which has been raised by-
that person or body.

State here the reasons for your notice of review and all matters you wish to raise. If necessary, this can
he continued or provided in full in a separate document. You may also submit additional documentation
with this form,

SEE  ATTVCHMOATS

1/ IKSITIVNL. SOPPo TN, SPATEWIEWI ™ |

2/ EXorAnaE of BEMuis WITH PrArimi 18, ofF1ese, 2EuwiTing, TD
REQEED CHE. CBTAL ASUMBEES | .

3'{ IFSLTIAL.  PESSIsnaE T lat o Ty DRPAIET T srmm;
1 STANDAIDY PERVermE T gEusTia T TYRE A4S .
THELE AU N0 (PRSI DB2&TIom As TETHE AcAaL CADLTL
ol cas~a cARRIES ST

OO T oM D - Bl A , |
4 WE D0 NoT amsmidaz. THAT vt SUBWMS  BLsmess MadSL Lwid

Corfololcd ~THIS SHows ThAT TS (S woT W Big BeAD”
AaE ol oA e <EQUCE . LT 15 A [ocAl Pravnucs Bpn
%osfm%s VoML LISHES. T 2E-Loc XTE . Thatg 15 &0 Tsrs TO
el TME Quuunsehi. BEYonI> THE AP LTIES ofF THE S1TE .,

Have you raised any matters which were not before the appointed officer at the time the Yes No
determination on your application was made? I::] X

If yes, you should explain in the box below, why you are faising new material, why it was not raised with-
the appointed officer before your application was détermined and why you consider it should now be
considered in your review.

Page 3of4

Page 63




Notice of Review
List of documents and evidence -

Please provide a list of all supporting documents, materials and evidence which you wish to submit with
your notice of review and intend to rely on in support of your review. .

AS PaWus ATHza- VS ABTED  VBUone.

Note, The planning authority will make & copy of the notice of review, the review documents and any
notice of the procedure of the review available for inspection at an office of the planning authority until
such tlme as the review is determined. it may also be available on the planning authority website.

Checklist

Please mark the appropnate boxes to confirm you have provided all supportmg documents and ewdence
relevant to your review: ,

@ Full completion of all parts of this form
@ Statement of your reasons for requiring a review
g All documents; materials and evidence whtch you intend to reiy on {e.g. plans and drawings

or other documents) which are now the sub;ect of this review. -

Note. Where the review relates to a further application e.g. renewal of planning permission or
modification, variation or removal of a planning condition or where it relates to an application for approval
of matters specified-in conditions, it is advisable to provide the apphcatlon reference number, approved
ptans and decision notice from that earlier consent. A

Deciaration

| the applicant/agent [delete as appropriate] hereby serve notice on the piénning authoritysto
review the application as set out on this form and in the supporting documents.

Date [o5(o1]I% l

1

Signed

On rbam;s OF COMMNZ, +(2
(Adors) U0

Page 4 of 4

Page 64




LTR/14-093/4/MT

05 January 2015

cumming

Planning Department

Aberdeen City Council

Planning, & Sustainable Development
Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North, Marischal College
Broad Street, Aberdeen

AB10 1AB

Dear Sirs

54 Salisbury Terrace, Aberdeen.

We write with reference to the above and now enclose our Notice of Review comprising the
following.

1. Application form duly completed.

2. Copy of our drawing EX01 rev A

3. Copy of supporting statement.

4. Copy of exchange of emails with planning officer.

As we have explained in the form, we feel that the reason for refusal of this application was
based on "general" comments from roads. This is a specific application for a specific local
company and we do not feel that this has been taken into consideration of this application.

Our client is a family business and is constrained by the size of the premises and has no plan to
expand the business beyond its current size.

We trust you find this in order and look forward to hearing from you in due course.

ark laylor
for Cummingandco (Aberdeen) Ltd

[RECRIVED |
- 8 JAN 2015

NSRS T Ry O I Or Moo =

Enc

Page 65

(©)
cO



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 66



MEMO

ABERDEEN

CiTYy COUNCIL

To Andrew Miller ' Date 24/10/2014

Planning & Infrastructure Roads Projects

Your Ref.| P141473 (ZLF) Commaunities, Housing and
Infrastructure
Our Ref. | TRIRB/1/51/2 Aberdeen Gity Councl

Business Hub 4

Ground Floor North
Marischal College
Broad Street
Aberdeen AB10 1AB

From | Roads Projects

Email - |
Dial _
Fax

Planning application no. P141473

54 Salisbury Terrace, Aberdeen '

Change of use from Class 5 {(General Industrial) to Car Repair {Class 5) and Car
“Hire (Sui Generis). \ .

1 have considered the above planning application and have the foil'owing.
observations:

1 Development Proposal

1.1 | note that the application is for the change of use from Class 5 (General
Industrial) to Car Repair {Class 5) and Car Hire (Sui Generis).

2 Development Layout

2.1 it is not clear from the plans submitted what the proposed development layout
will be. The applicant should submit a plan showing where the rental cars will be
parked taking consideration of a worst case scenario whereby all rental cars are
on site. The applicant has mentioned that they will have a maximum of ten so |
would ask that these are shown.

- 2.2 The applicant has mentioned that as well as running a car rental firm that there
will be a vehicle repair garage proposed on site. The applicant should also show
on an updated plan the off sitreet parking that is required in accordance with the
Transport and Accessibility supplementary guidance. The applicant should be
aware that as the site is in the Outer City the following maximum parkmg
standards should be referenced:

0.5 spaces per 1 member of staff;

.1 space per 33m? vehicle display area;

1 per 25m? spares department;

3 spaces per servicing bay,

Pete Leonard
Corporate Director

Page 67




‘e 2 spaces per tyre and exhaust bay.

3  Drainage

3.1 The applicant should submit a drainage statement detailing the levels of surface
water treatment existing and proposed.

4 Conclusion

4.1 There are outstanding issues in respect of this planning application. | will be in
a position to make further comment on receipt of the requested information.

Richard Bailie
Engineer

Page 68_




« IINUUNVEEING - VA LR IVERD DAL

rage 1 01 2

INCOMING E-MAIL MESSAGE

Project No,:

14-093

Client: Second Choice Car Hire
Dascription: Change of use
Location: 54 Salisbury Terrace, Aberdeen, AB10 6QH

- From: Andraw Miller | 1
Subject: P141473 - The Washbay, 54 Salisbury Ter., Aberdeen
To: Mark Taylor )
Attachments: 141472 Roads.pdf;
Doc Ref.: EML-INC/14-093/18
Sent: 29th Oct 2014 at 08:54 Received: 28th Oct 2014 at 08:55
Message:
Hi l\_ﬂark,

Please see attached response from Roads Projects seeking additional information. | quened the drainage part
of the response and received the following from roads:

| wouidn't require a full DIA just a siatement. The use class change may result in additional drainage being
required as working on vehicles will result in oilfpetrol on site which require additional drainage requirements.
If this has been catered for in the previous use then this is what can be stated in the drainage statement.

Kind Regards

Andrew

Andrew Miller [Planner (Development Management South)

Planning and Sustainable Development | Communities, Housing and Infrastructure | Aberdeen City Council |
Business Hub 4 | Ground Floor North | Marischal College | Broad Street | Aberdeen | AB10 1AB

Direct Dial:

Email: _

" Switchboard: 08456 08 09 10

et el e e

Web: www.aberdeencity.gov. uk/planningapplications

The advice contained in this email is given without prejudice to the final decas:on on or future consideration of
any application received by Aberdeen City Council.

about:blank

05/01/2015

Page 69




INCUMING E-MAIL MESSAUE ' Page 2ot 2

We are always try!ng to improve the guality of customer service that we provide and would like to know your
views on the service you have received to help us learn what.we need to do better, We would very much
appreciate you taking a few moments fo fill in our short feedback form by '
visiting hito:/iwww.aberdeencity gov.ukicustomerfeedback and selecting Development Management {Planning
Applications Team). Many thanks in advance.

IMPORTANT NOTICE: This e-mail {including any attachment to it} is confidential, protacted by copyright and
may be privileged. The Information contained in it should be used for s Intended purposes only. if you receive
this email in error, nofify the sender by reply email, delete the received emait and do not make use of, disclose
of copy it. Whilst we take reasonable precautions to ensure that our émails are free from viruses, we cannot
be responsible for any viruses transmitted with this email and recommend that you subject any incoming email
to your own virus checking procedures. Unless related to Council business, the opinions expressed in this
emall are those of the sender and they do not necessarily constitute those of Aberdeen City Council. Unless
we expressly say otherwise in this email or its attachments, neither this email nor its aftachmenis ereate, form
‘part of or vary any contractual or unilateral obligation, Aberdeen Clty Council's incoming and outgoing email is
subject to regular mon;toring

Th:s message has been scanned for viruses and dangerous
content by Converged, and is believed to be clean,

about:blank ' - - 05/01/2015




MEMO

ABERDEEN
: - CiTy CouncitL
i To Andrew Miller Date 18/11/2014- .
Planning & Infrastructure Roads Projects
‘ - : Your Ref.| P141473 (ZLF) | Communities, Housing and
Infrastructure
Our Ref. | TR/RB/M/51/2 Aberdeen City Councll
. . .| Business Hub 4
. Ground Fioor North
From | Roads Projects Marischal College
Broad Sireet
Email - Aberdeen AB10 1AB
Dial .
Fax

Planning application no. P141473

54 Salisbury Terrace, Aberdeen

Change of use from Class 5 (General Industnal) to Car Repair (Class §) and Car
Hire (Sui Generis).

| have considered the above pléﬁning application and have the following
observations:

1 Devélopment Proposal

1.1 | note that the application is for the change of use from Class 5 (Géneral
Industrial) to Car Repair (Class 5) and Car Hire (Sui Generis).

2  Development Layout

2.1 An updated plan has been submitted showing the proposed internal layout of
the car rental element of the development, should alf vehicles be on site. It is
evident that this layout is unacceptable with no suitable manoeuvrability within
the site.

2.2 | previously requested parking proposals for the car repair section of the
application. The applicant has stated that it is unreasonable to ask for parking
for the car repair element of the applicatlon as it is not a large car repair
garage. | do not think it unreasonable to require parking for the garage element
of the application as parking would be required on site to park cars for repair,
staff parking and. cars that have been dropped off or are waiting to be picked
up.

2.3 To be clear the Roads section would be looking robustly at how these use
types may operate on site should they both be at or near capacity. | have
serious concems that the site area is constricted, and operating the two
proposed use types from here would be unmanageable without the local streets
having to accommodate overspill parking.

Pete Leonard
Corporate Director

Page 71




3  Conclusion ‘ _
3.1 . For the reasons stated above | would recommend refusal for this application.

Richard Bailie
Engineer

Page 72




_ OUTGOING E-MAIL MESSAGE ‘Page 1 of 5

OUTGOING E-MAIL MESSAGE

Project No.: 14-093

Client: Second Choice Car Hire : -
Desgcription: Change of use

Location: 54 Salisbury Terrace, Aberdeen, AB10 6QH

From: Mark Taylor |

Subiject: Re: RE: P141473 - The Washbay, 54 Salisbury Ter., Aberdeen
To: Andrew Miller

Ge: ) .

Attachments:

Dot Ref.: EML-QUT/4-093/12

Sent; 24th Nov 2014 at 10:03 Created: 24ih Nov 2014 at 09:49
Message:

REFERENCE EML-OUT/14-083/12
For the aftention of Andrew Milier

Hi Andrew, thanks for sending this on to me. We find it difficuit to understand that a car hire company would
have all cars in the parking area. We can see that it would be reasonable to assume that say 50% of the cars
might not be rented out and parking for these cars could be accommodated within the site. What was asked
for was to show that the site could accommodate 10 cars if they were un rented.

Currently our client cperated out of an area of approx 150m2. the site aréa of the new sile is 265m2 -
considerably greater than the current set up,

There has never been any complaints from neighbours etc in the current location and we would not anticipate
this causing any problems in the current location.

There is the option for our cllent to reduce the amount of hire cars he has as this is not the core business.
Would a meeting with Richard Baillie be appropriate.

Regards,

Mark Taylor

Director

Cummingandco {Abardeen) Lid » Architects
Albion House, 6 Castlehill, Aberdeen, AB11 5GJ.
w: hitno/fwww. cummingandco.com

e: :

1
fif

The following refers to email messages fransmitted from, or on behalf of, cummingandco Architects.
This information contained in any e-mail and their attached files, including replies and forwarded copies, are
cenfidential and intended solely for the addressee(s) and may be legally privileged or prohibited from

about:blank ' 05/01/2015

Page 73




v ElWW NIV EAL NN JoTAVES R L AV AL L AN

J.us\.tl\)-lh

INCOMING E-MAIL MESSAGE

Project No.:

- 14-093

Client: Second Choice Car Hire

Bescription: Change of use

Location: 54 Salisbury Temace, Aberdeen, AB10 8QH
From: Andrew Miller [ q
Subject: P141473 - The Washbay, 54 Sailsbury Ter.

To: Mark Taylor L _

Attachments: .

Doc Ref. EML-INC/14-093/26

Sent: 4th Dec 2014 at 14:38 Received: 4th Dec 2014 at 14:40
Méssage:

HMi Mark,

Following on from our discussicn earlier in the week regarding the Washbay and a way forward for the car

hire, | discussed the potential of car hire operating alongside the car repair from the site and hire cars stored
elsewhere with Garfield. He is of the opinion that this would not be a workable solution, as there would still be
the car hire element operating from the premises and even if the cars are stored off site, there ultimately will

be hire cars within the site alongside the car repair. There would also likely be instances where the car hire
would use parking that would be ngcessary for the car repair to operate and would be hard to enforce froma
planning perspective. As such he has asked me to proceed to determine the application as it currenfly stands
(refusal). . ‘

\_\-'\
} appreciate that this is not the outcome your client is seeking. | am happy to discuss further if you wish.

Kind Regards

Andrew

Andrew Miller |Planner {Development Management South) -

Planning and Sustainable Development | Communities, Housing and Infrastructure | Aberdeen Cib} Council |
Business Hub 4 | Ground Floor North | Marischal College | Broad Street | Aberdeen { AB10 1AB

Direct Dial: 777 14 | Switchboard: 08456.08 09 10
Email: et " )| Web: www.aberdeencity. gov.uk/planningapplications
about:blank 05/01/2015

Pagé' 74



\4 10 X3 0v0-€1

0Ore=BUILULIND

SuoleAd|3 B sue|d Bunsix3 o
ussplaqy ‘eoelia] Aingsies ‘Aequsepn

uonens|3 (IS9AN-YHON) sueT

[1[] |
NU%
001’} 9Jeds
ue|d J100|4 punoJds) Bunsix3 || ||
\ - - - 0]
oL 8 9 —
6 L g Lm
l
(Sea.e Bunyied
Buimoys) pieA bunsixg

Page 75

Buipiing Buisix3

uoneas|3 (3se3-yuoN) aoeus] Aingsles

0SZL:L 2eds ye|4 Uoljeao]




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



SUPPORTING STATEMENT, 54 SALISBURY TERRACE, ABERDEEN

This application is to allow the current owner to change the use of the site to allow a
small family run mechanical garage / car hire business to operate from the current
premises.

The occupier of the building if this application is successful will be Second Choice
Car Hire, a business run my Andy Kilminster, his wife and his son as an apprentice
mechanic. They currently operate out of a premises in Fraser Place where they
have operated for over 20 years which with modern garaging requirements is now
less than ideal.

After several attempts to find suitable premises, they feel that this site would be ideal
for their business. The proposal would be that they would relocate from their current
premises to the new location and continue trading as they do today.

Regarding the mechanical side of the business and with no plans for expansion,
there is only a certain amount of vehicles that can be worked on at any one time thus
there would not be cars parked on lanes and surrounding streets as may be a
concern of some neighbours.

The car rental side of the business is now second to the mechanical and the
business runs a maximum of 10 hire cars, generally all smaller vehicles in the Fiesta
/ Astra size and the majority of these are out on hire for a minimum of 1 week and
usually longer.

To summarise, this is an opportunity for a locally established family run business to
continue to operate in Aberdeen while providing employment and a future for Andy's
son & family.

Page 77




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 78



	Agenda
	1 Procedure Notice
	2.1 Delegated Report
	141473 Comm Council_Redacted
	141473 objection_Redacted

	2.2 Planning Policies referred to in Documents submitted
	Supplementary Guidance - Transport and Accessibility

	2.3 Notice of Review with supporting information submitted by Applicant
	Covering letter
	Correspondance with Case Planner
	Amended Plan
	Application Supporting Statement


